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President’s Report 

I remember this time last year reflecting with awe 
on the many and varied contributions made to the 
Club throughout the season. Again in 2017/2018 
we have seen so many of our wonderful members 
contributing their time and skills across all facets 
of the Club. These efforts resulted in amazing 
achievements that were deservedly well 
celebrated at the Club Presentation Night in May. 

It has also been an exciting year for some new 
major initiatives. In particular, we were privileged 
to have the team from LifeChanger, including the 
inspirational Trevor Hendy and Scott Watters, 
visit the Club and impart some of their wisdom 
and life lessons to some of the Club’s young 
people. The end of season has seen the new 
beach boardwalk completed and, most excitingly, 
the redevelopment of the Clubhouse is underway 
– more details on that later. First some other
highlights and much deserved thanks.

Presentation Night 

recognitions 

As I mentioned at the Presentation Night, thanks 
to all our dedicated patrolling members, we have 
this year been recognised by Lifesaving Victoria 
as being in the top 5 clubs in the state for patrol 
numbers. Particular thanks to the Patrol Captains 
and Vice Captains, not to mention the 
contributions from the recently formed 
WoodChucks Patrol led by Nick Woods and 
Chuck Warner with their rare combination of surf 
skills and humour! 

Congratulations to Adam Lipszyc and Andy Nott 
who, in their first year as Club Captain and Vice-
Captain respectively, have done a fantastic job in 
coordinating patrols and a range of other Club 
activities. The Presentation Night, organised 
largely by Adam and Andy ably assisted by Sam 
Richardson and Rhys Cole, was a fantastic night, 
slightly more stylish than previous years and a fun 
and well attended occasion at Club sponsor - the 
Flinders Hotel. The feedback was overwhelmingly 
positive and the bar has been set high for next 
year’s event. 

Congratulations and sincere thanks were afforded 
to Brittany Morgenthaler and all members 
involved in undertaking what must be a record 
number of training and skills maintenance 
activities this season. The skills gained by our 
members are vital to provide us with the ability to 
safely patrol Point Leo beach and are also of great 
potential benefit away from the beach. Examples 
of utilising lifesaving skills were highlighted on the 
night when Michael Treadwell, Luke Treadwell, 
and Andy Nott were awarded Outstanding 
Achievement awards for rescues of three people 
in two separate incidents. There can be no greater 
testament to the value of our Club than the 
rescue of five people from harm, and the saving 
of a life as was the case in these two major 
rescues. 

Nippers Program 

A huge well done to all involved in participating in 
and facilitating our Nippers program – it is a 
wonderful thing to see over 450 young people 
gain skills, build confidence and make friends 
over the summer months. It’s also fantastic to see 
some of these young people take these skills 
through to further fun and fitness as part of the 
competition program. The Nippers program can 
only run with the active participation of all families 
- so thank you to you all. Richard Hoskins has 
continued to provide great leadership as Nippers 
Co-ordinator this season and I endorse his 
comments in his report with particular thanks to 
Sarah-Jo Mason who ran the program in 
Richard’s absence part way through the season. 
Thanks also to uber-contributors Nick Clarke, 
Jason Romari, Justin Wheelahan, Chuck Warner 
and Jessica Lightfoot who collectively have 
headed coaching, competition management, 
BBQ, IRB duties and Club merchandise sales. To 
all the Age Managers, Assistant Age Managers 
and Activity Leaders, please know that your 
efforts are greatly valued by the Club and by our 
nippers.
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Surf Sports, Victorian Surf 

Sports Academy 

and LifeChanger 

It has been great to see so many members 
participating in training and competition for surf 
sports with many excellent results seeing the 
team go from strength to strength. Iris Cassell has 
again done a wonderful job in managing the 
Competition Team and keeping everyone on track 
in what must be one of the most challenging and 
complex sports to administer.  

Jon Ford provides inspirational dedication and 
leadership as Head Coach and was this year 
awarded the President’s Award in recognition of 
this and the many other things that Jon 
contributes to, including organising and 
performing at the ever sensational Muso Night 
and also providing valuable Building Sub-
Committee input. This year has seen Jon also 
lead the way with two initiatives that extend the 
Club’s reach. Firstly, he initiated the VSSA 
(Victorian Surf Sports Academy), a venture aimed 
at bringing together competitors across all 
Victorian clubs to provide an inclusive training 
platform with access to top coaches in a non-
partisan environment. Also, Jon has led a team in 
initiating a relationship with the LifeChanger 
organisation whose vision is to: Awaken the hero 
that lives within all Australian Youth. This has 
seen Point Leo join with Mornington LSC in a pilot 
program in Victoria. I have been very impressed 
and inspired by the positive feedback. I applaud 
both of these initiatives and congratulate Jon on 
his leadership and drive. We all look forward to 
the positive outcomes they can generate for the 
benefit of our Club members and the broader 
community. 

Our new boardwalk 

As I mentioned above, and as many of you may 
have already seen, we now have a beach access 
boardwalk. This was a community project led by 
Disabled Surfing Australia with financial support 
from the Club and the Point Leo Foreshore. This 
will be a great asset for the whole community and 
will also provide the Club with an elevated location 
for beach observation.  

Upgraded Club facilities – 

some generous donations 

In 2016, at the celebration of the 60th anniversary 
of the Club, then President Tamara Brawn 
announced the launch of the Future Project – 
established to investigate the best way for the 
Club facilities to be redeveloped to cater for 
members for the next 20+ years. It is so exciting 
to see the first phase of building renovation works 
underway and it will be fantastic to have brand 
new change rooms and amenities directly 
accessible from outside, and a new and improved 
kitchen too. Luke Treadwell has been leading the 
project for the Club and has done an amazing job 
working with our builders, the Lloyd Group. Huge 
thanks must also go to the Balnarring and District 
Community Bank Branch of the Bendigo Bank 
who have agreed to fund the new kitchen with a 
generous $47,000 donation.  

Thanks so much to those Club members who 
have generously made cash donations to the 
Future Project. This has made it possible for the 
first phase to meet our aspirations. The 
redevelopment is an expensive project and we 
now need to look seriously to renewed fundraising 
endeavours in order to afford to complete the 
redevelopment. The Committee is giving 
consideration to how we can appropriately 
acknowledge all donations.  

The ultimate vision for the Clubhouse will see it 
become a space that can cater for our 
membership of over 1,000 people, including the 
training, accommodation, storage and social 
spaces that we need now, as well as provide 
opportunities for broader community use which 
will see the building play a role as a community 
hub for Point Leo and the region.  



Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. | ABN 83 471 063 765 | pointleoslsc.com.au Page 5 of 54 

Sponsors 

A most sincere thank you to our generous 
sponsors who have contributed financially to the 
operation of the Club, most over multiple years. 
We look forward to continued relationships with 
these great local businesses: Flinders Hotel, 
Paton Estate Agents, Vantage Fuels, Point Leo 
General Store and the Balnarring and District 
Community Bank Branch of the Bendigo Bank.  

We were also very fortunate over the season to 
have had all of the sausages for the nipper BBQ 
donated by Mornington Prime Cuts! A huge 
thanks to them and to the O’Connor family for this 
incredibly generous and valuable contribution to 
the Club. We ask that all our members support 
these great businesses – and let them know when 
you can that you are grateful for their support of 
our Club! 

Finally, I wish to thank all the hardworking 
members of the Committee. We are blessed to 
have some very dedicated people who work 
tirelessly in all facets of the Club to ensure the 
successes highlighted above. In particular the 
leadership and knowledge that comes from many 
years of dedicated service by Andrew Gibson 
(Club Secretary), Kim Williams (Treasurer and 
Registrar) and Tamara Brawn (Senior Vice 
President) is a collective contribution that stands 
the Club in great stead and I thank them for their 
support and dedicated service over many years. 

As I’ve said many times, the Club is only what it is 
due to the commitment and efforts of members. If 
you are not yet actively involved please reach out 
to a Committee member – we will find the perfect 
role for you! 

SIMON MERRIGAN 
President 
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Financial 
Reports 

Statement of Financial Position 

as at 30 April 2018 

Note 2018 ($) 2017 ($) 
Assets 
Current assets 
Cash and cash 
equivalents 853,326 779,305 

Trade and other 
receivables 3,872 5,586 

Inventories 62,138 50,056 
Other assets 7,700 - 
Total current assets 927,036 834,947 

Non-current assets 
Property, plant and 
equipment 554,402 553,507 

Work in progress 26,335  - 
Total non-current assets 580,737 553,507 

Total assets 1,507,773 1,388,454 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 
Other liabilities (662) (119)
Total current liabilities (662) (119)

Total liabilities (662) (119)

Net assets 1,508,435 1,388,573 

Members’ Funds 
Members funds  563,778 563,778 
Retained earnings 944,545 824,795 
Unrealised gains 112  - 

Total members’ funds 1,508,435 1,388,573 
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Statement of Profit or Loss 

and other Comprehensive Income 

For the year ended 30 April 2018 
 

 2018 ($)  2017 ($) 
Income    

Gifts  
 

 

Sponsorships 5,045  7,858 
Gifts & Donations  42,513  30,906 
Accommodation income 3,982  -  
Grants 45,983  30,843 
Subsidies 2,554  2,423 
    

Facilities    

Equipment 3,555  3,350 
Club Rooms 1,682  955 
    

Fund Raising    

GT Foundation -   2,415 
Pt Leo Swim Classic 26,435  25,810 
Functions 4,659  1,877 
Sundry 12,242  10,624 
    

Memberships    

Competition  24,860  26,678 
Members 86,746  73,409 
Training Camps 34,349  33,165 
50/50 Scheme -   539 
Other income  3,395  2,125 
Bar 8,700  8,543 
Interest 20,809  17,419 
Uniforms; clothing 57,832  54,520 
Equipment Levy - Nippers 14,769  14,791 
Other 1,139  7,331 
Profit (Loss) on Disposal of Assets (36)  2,045 
Total income 401,213  357,627 
 
 

   

Expenses  
  

Accommodation 5,670  4,638 
Accountant/Audit 1,400  1,000 
Administration 5,573  5,363 
Awards 3,955  3,180 
Bank Charges 2,651  2,141 
Bar Purchases 3,845  4,602 
Cleaning 6,465  7,673 
Club Repairs & Maintenance 10,122  9,864 
Club Supplies & furnishings 683  857 
Competition -Seniors 9,640  10,059 
Competition - Nippers 13,892  13,195 
Depreciation 51,887  60,501 
Equipment Hire & Replacement 218  824 
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50/50 Equipment payments 1,700 - 
Asset Written-Off 680 5,561 
First Aid 138 84 
Functions 16,059 14,311 
GTF Bursary 3,800 2,500 
GTF Grant 4,000 5,000 
Grant  500 2,393 
Information & Technology 2,709 1,537 
Insurance 23,005 21,354 
Patrol 2,910 4,296 
Postage & Delivery 8,416 2,624 
Printing & Reproduction 433 1,040 
Registration & Licences 1,918 1,832 
Sundry 20,929 7,378 
Swim Classic 14,127 14,416 
Training & Development 12,807 16,718 
Uniforms 45,270 47,125 
Utilities 6,063 5,473 
Total expenses 281,463 277,538 

Profit for the year 119,750 80,089 

Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year 824,795 744,706 
Total comprehensive Income for the financial year 944,545 824,795 

Statement of Members’ Funds 

For the year ended 30 April 2018 

30 April 2018 
Members Retained Unrealised Total 
 funds Earnings gains 

$ $ $ $ 
Balance at 1 May 2017 563,778 824,795 - 1,388,573
Profit for the year - 119,750 - 119,750
Unrealised gains 112 112 
Balance at 30 April 2018 563,778 944,545 112 1,508,435 

30 April 2017 
Reserves Retained 

earnings 
Unrealised 

gains Total 

$ $ $ $ 
Balance at 1 May 2016 563,778 744,706 - 1,308,484
Profit for the year - 80,089 - 80,089
Balance at 30 April 2017 563,778 824,795 - 1,388,573
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Statement of Cash flows 

For the year ended 30 April 2018 
 

Cash flows from operating activities 2018    
Receipts from donors, members and other income  334,457  305,195 
Payments to suppliers and employees  (272,993)  (211,507) 
Interest received  20,809  17,419 
Grants received  45,983  30,843 
Net cash provided by operating activities 128,256  141,949 

  
  

    

Cash flows from investing activities  
  

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment  -  - 

Payments for property, plant and equipment (54,235) 
 

(108,702) 

Net cash used in investing activities (54,235)  (108,702) 
  

  
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 74,021  33,248 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 779,305  746,057 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 853,326  779,305 

 

Notes to the financial statements 

For the year ended 30 April 2018 
 
Note 1. Statement of significant accounting policies 

General information 

Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. is an Association incorporated under the Associations 
Incorporation Reform Act 2012.  

Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. is an entirely voluntary organisation which provides beach patrol 
and rescue services, first aid and lifesaving training at Point Leo Surf Beach and surrounds. 

The financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2018 were approved and authorised for issue by 
the Members of the Committee of Management.  

Financial reporting framework 

This financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared to satisfy the financial reporting 
requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards and Associations Incorporation Reform Act 
2012. The Committee of Management has determined that Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. (the 
Association) is not a reporting entity. 

Statement of compliance 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Associations 
Incorporation Reform Act 2012, the recognition and measurement requirements specified by 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, and the disclosure requirements of Accounting 
Standards AASB 101 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’, AASB 107 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’, 
AASB 108 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’, and AASB 1054 
‘Australian Additional Disclosures’. 

 



Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. | ABN 83 471 063 765 | pointleoslsc.com.au Page 10 of 54 

New and amended standards adopted by the association 

The association has adopted all the amendments to Australian Accounting Standards issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board, which are relevant to and effective for the association’s 
financial statements for the annual period beginning 1 May 2017. 

None of these amendments have had a significant impact on the association. 

Basis of preparation 

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs and 
does not take into account changing money value or, except where specifically stated, current 
valuations of non-current assets. 

All amounts are presented in Australian dollars, unless otherwise stated. 

In the application of the association’s accounting policies, the members of the committee are required 
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both 
current and future periods. 

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of 
the financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. 

(a) Property, Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation. The 
depreciable amount of all property, plant and equipment is depreciated over the useful life of the asset 
to the Association commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. 

(b) Inventories

Inventories are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. 

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments. 

(d) Income tax

No provision for income tax has been made as the Association is exempt from income tax under 
Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

(e) Accounts Receivable and Other Receivables

Accounts receivable are expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 
are classified as current assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets.  

(f) Revenue and other income

Funding for Club activities comes from membership fees, donations and gifts/sponsorships from 
corporate benefactors. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable after taking into 
account any available concessions. 
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Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method using an appropriate interest 
rate.  

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

(g) Goods and services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount 
of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). Receivables and 
payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST 
recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the 
statement of financial position. 

Cash flows are presented in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis, except for the GST 
component of investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows. 

(h) Accounts Payable and Other Payables

Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting 
period for goods and services received by the Association during the reporting period that remain 
unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days 
of recognition of the liability. 

(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the association has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of 
past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow 
can be reliably measured. 

Provisions are measured using the best estimate of amounts required to settle the obligation at the 
end of the reporting period. 

(j) Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the association reviews the carrying values of its tangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value 
in use, is compared to the asset's carrying value. Any excess of the asset's carrying value over its 
recoverable amount is expensed to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income. 

(k) Current and non-current classification

Assets and liabilities are presented in the Statement of Financial Position based on current and non-
current classification. 

An asset is classified as current when: 

• it is either expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating
cycle;

• it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
• it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or
• the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle

a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when: 

• it is either expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
• it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
• it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or
• there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after

the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
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(l) Comparative information

When required by Accounting Standards, comparatives have been adjusted to conform to changes in 
presentation for the current year. 

(m) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires the committee of management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and other various factors that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates.  

The Committee of management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to 
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised if t-he revision affects only that period or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

(n) Events after the reporting date

On June 12th 2018, Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. has undertaken the refurbishment of the 
change room and kitchen.  To the date of this report, an amount of $327,495-41 has been spent on 
the refurbishment with a further $123,436-50 budgeted to be spent.  The refurbishment will be funded 
by club funds held in operational and term deposit accounts ($315,631-91), donations from members 
and grants received from the State Government ($83,600-) and the Balnarring and Community 
Branch of the Bendigo Bank ($51,700).   

NOTE 2 - AUDITORS REMUNERATION 

During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor 
of the Association: 

Audit services - Kidmans Partners Audit Pty Ltd 

Audit of the financial statements  2018 - $1,800 2017 - $1,400 
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Statement by Members of the Committee of Management 

Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT  
To the Committee Members of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc.  for the year ended 
30 April 2018 

Opinion 
We have audited the special purpose financial statements of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club 
Inc.  (the entity), which comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 April 2018, the 
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Members’ Funds 
and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the entity as at 30 April 2018, and of its financial performance and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 
(AASB’s) to the extent described in Note 1 and the Associations Incorporation Reform Act 
2012. 

Basis for opinion 
Without modifying our audit opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements, 
which describes the basis of accounting.  The financial report has been prepared to assist 
Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. to meet the requirements of the Associations Incorporation 
Reform Act 2012 under the requirements of special purpose financial reporting. As a result, 
the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.  Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the independence requirements of the 
Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012.  We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Other Information 
The Members of the Committee are responsible for the other information.  The other 
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report for the year ended 
30 April 2018, other than the financial report and our Auditors Report thereon.   

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.   



In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and ‘in doing so’ consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.  We have 
nothing to report in this regard.  

Going concern 
The Members of the Committee’s use of the going concern basis of accounting appears to be 
appropriate and based on the audit evidence obtained, there is no material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. 

Responsibilities of the Members of the Committee and Those Charged with Governance 
for the Financial Statements  
The Members of the Committee are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and for such 
internal control as the Members of the Committee determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, the Members of the Committee are responsible for 
assessing the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Members 
of the Committee either intends to liquidate the Entity or cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.   

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting 
process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise 
from fraud and error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements.   

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.  We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



 
 
 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Members of the Committee.   
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Members of the Committee’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence 
and, where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Kidmans Partners Audit Pty Ltd  
ABN: 46 143 986 841 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
John Petridis  
Director 
Melbourne, 7th July 2018    
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Club Captain’s 
Report 

Another season whooshes past, and yet this 
one really does feel different: everywhere we 
look things are happening.  

• Our patrol teams have expanded, with
seven patrols now serving the public.

• The equipment we have at hand is
second to none, and this has been
reflected via the success of multiple
rescues in a number of settings.

• Chief Instructor Brittany Morgenthaler
has seen to it that our patrols are well
stocked thanks to the numerous courses
and camps she continues to run with
great success.

• In competition world new initiatives such
as VSSA and LifeChanger will serve our
members well, creating healthy, well-
rounded, polished young athletes.

I have to say this year’s Bronze camp members 
were by far the fittest group we’ve seen – we’re 
going to have to bring in some big competition 
guns to tame 2018’s group!  

The Nipper program remains a core pillar of the 
Club, training young members to be safe, 
competent and skilled in the water and this 
season was no exception, with excellent turnout 
and wonderful support.  

Everyone has noticed the construction happening 
at and around the Club. The Disabled Surfing 
Association initiated boardwalk looks amazing 
and will give even greater opportunity for many 
more people to enjoy our beautiful beach. 
Furthermore, construction at the Club is well 
underway at the time of writing, with the kitchen 
and change room refurbishments coming along 
nicely.  

Socially, the Club held another cracker Muso 
Night, cheers to Jon Ford for organising and of 
course performing; and thanks to the hard work of 
Nick Woods in running a course on the 
Responsible Serving of Alcohol, many of our 
members can now ‘man the bar’ as required. 
Presentation Night was a great success hosted at 
the beautiful one-and-only Flinders Hotel, with the 
theme of “a Touch of Orange” really taken to heart 
(props to Chuck for the high vis).  

All these aspects of the Club are being streamed 
straight to the eyes of the broader community via 
our new and improved Instagram account: a big 
shout out to the social media team for expanding 
our reach into the community and reminding them 
of the great work that gets done here. 

Personally, I wish to thank Vice Club Captain 
Andy Nott for his hard work this season and 
extend a broader thanks to all members of the 
Point Leo SLSC community – the Club continues 
to grow and with members like the ones I interact 
with on a daily basis, it comes as no surprise at 
all.  

Thanks are also in order for our wonderful 
sponsors who assist us in many ways from chips 
on patrol to major construction works; the Club 
doesn’t function without you.  

Lastly a big and personal thank you to the Point 
Leo Committee for welcoming me into my new 
role, guiding me through the processes and 
having (a lot of) patience. While the beach may 
somewhat go into hibernation mode over winter, 
the Committee still works religiously to assess, 
review and plan for the next season, and the one 
after that!  

Cheers everyone, see you at the beach. 

ADAM LIPSZYC 
Club Captain 
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Vice Club Captain’s 
Report 

I think I can speak on behalf of everyone in 
saying the 2017/2018 patrol season was a 
great success!  

With the determination of all our patrolling 
members we showed outstanding results as a 
Club and provided an overall outstanding service 
to the community. A big thank you goes to all of 
those who gave up their valuable free time to 
come down and volunteer at our wonderful beach. 
I strongly encourage all members that didn’t patrol 
this season to come back down and use your 
extremely valuable skills to patrol our beach with 
the amazing people we have here.  

I would like to thank all of those members that 
attained higher awards this season, we cannot 
patrol the beach without these essential awards, 
and to know that we have these members 
patrolling our beach is a huge step forward for the 
operational side of the Club. Whether the award 
is to do with resuscitation, IRBs or even beach 
management you all play a vital role down on the 
beach, not to mention you have these skills for the 
rest of your life and unfortunately may have to 
draw upon them. 

Congratulations also goes out to all of our patrol 
captains of the 2017/2018 season for their 
outstanding commitment and support to the Club: 
Andrew Gibson, Romy Lipszyc, Pat Hough, 

Ella Swaney, Sam Richardson and Nick 
Woods/Chuck Warner. I would also like to thank 
the Vice Captains for their efforts: Michelle Royal-
Hebblewhite, James Paton, Sophie Welsh, Zane 
Cargill, Matt Blair and Britt Morgenthaler. It is also 
important to mention that we had a brand-new 
patrol team this season with the almighty 
WOODCHUCKS, captained by Nick Woods and 
Chuck Warner. The addition of our 7th patrol team 
was a great success.  

When looking at the statistics for the season it is 
obvious that we offer a vital service to the 
thousands of people that visit our beach each 
year. The statistics show how important our 
training, knowledge and teamwork truly are.  

Congratulations and thank you to all of those 
members who were involved in First Aid, Rescues 
and Searches. Your efforts were greatly 
appreciated by members of the community, we 
received numerous thanks over the season in 
recognition of the professionalism we conduct 
ourselves with. 

It’s great to see so many keen faces, both young 
and old, down on the beach wearing the red and 
yellow and doing the Club proud. Thank you to all 
members who patrolled this season, we can’t do 
it without you and I look forward to seeing you all 
down the beach in the coming season 

ANDREW NOTT 
Vice Club Captain 



Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. | ABN 83 471 063 765 | pointleoslsc.com.au Page 19 of 54 

Education 

This season the Club ran many courses for 
members including Bronze Medallion, Surf 
Rescue Certificate, IRB Crew and Drivers, Spinal, 
First Aid and Beach Management, with 166 
members completing new awards. Along with 
these new awards, most active members 
completed their skills maintenance in the months 
running up to Christmas. 

Bronze Camp ran from the 16th to the 22nd of 
December 2017. The course ran smoothly with all 
39 participants achieving their Bronze Medallion. 
The camp was a big success with fitness 
sessions, the Westpac Helicopter visit and 
lifesaving training. Thank you to the five full time 
instructors who assisted me to run the course: 
Adam Lipszyc, Andrew Nott, Morgan Jones, 
Romy Lipszyc and Kaitlin Russell. Also, to the 
other members who helped run the camp.  

An Adult Bronze course was held on the first 
weekend of December with 20 members 
successfully completing their Bronze Medallion. 

The Surf Rescue Certificate (SRC) Camp was 
successfully held on the second weekend 
of December with 39 participants achieving 
their certificate. Thank you to those instructors 
who assisted to run this camp. 

The Spinal Management course was a huge 
success this year, with 24 additional members 
now holding the Spinal Management award. A big 
thank you to Andrew Nott for running the course. 

We had two IRB courses run this year. The week-
long IRB course run by Bernadene Hansen was 
extremely successful with six new drivers and 
seven new crews. A big thank you to Bernadene 
Hansen, Abbie Hansen, Andrew Nott, Nick 
Woods, Andrew Gibson and Nathan Cester for 
helping with the courses.  

Well done to those members who completed new 
awards this season and thank you to all the 
trainers and assessors who helped throughout 
the 2017/2018 season.  

BRITTANY MORGENTHALER 
Chief Instructor 
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Operations 

First Aid Report

Our members this year completed a total of forty-
six First Aid cases. Forty-two cases were minor 
First Aid, and four were major. This is a slight 
increase from forty-two cases in the 2016/2017 
season. The ambulance was called to attend one 
First Aid this season. 

Whilst First Aid responses were increased to eight 
(from two) during the Boxing Day Swim Classic 
this year, all of these were minor incidents 
involving minimal intervention.  

I wish to thank every member who provided First 
Aid this season. Our ability to respond to incidents 
with skill and professionalism not only provides 
the best outcomes for those in need, but also 
improves how the Club is perceived in the wider 
community. 

Once again, our team of medical doctors were 
vitally important to our ability to host major events 
at the Club. Thank you to Dr Kate Stern who 

continues to do great work coordinating the team 
of doctors at these events. 

To those who improved their First Aid skills this 
season, whether it was during SRC or Bronze 
Camp, a Senior First Aid certificate, Spinal 
Management, or in completing Advanced 
Resuscitation Techniques – thank you! There are 
many opportunities in the off season to up-skill, so 
keep an eye out for upcoming opportunities both 
at Point Leo and at other Clubs. In the coming 
years a number of important changes will be 
made to First Aid protocol Australia wide, so be 
sure to keep your skills current! 

Skills you learn and apply at Point Leo not only 
make you more valuable to your patrol, but also 
to employers and when out in the wider 
community. I would encourage every member to 
strive to improve their First Aid capabilities each 
year. 

MORGAN JONES 
First Aid Officer 

Statistics (First Aid Incidents) 

Minor Major 
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Nipper Days 14 11 8 3 0 1 
Patrol members / 
Carnival 

4 9 17 1 0 2 

Public 22 17 9 7 3 1 
Swim Classic 0 2 8 0 0 0 
Total 39 39 42 11 3 4 
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IRB Report 

The 2017/2018 season was my first as IRB Captain and 
I would like to thank Blane Paton for his assistance in 
the transition. His work from previous seasons has 
seen a new motor donated from Wes Frost Marine, 
Mornington for the Point Leo IRB Race section which 
we are continuing to try to build within our membership. 

The IRB Management Plan has built a great asset for 
the club with seven complete boats that are 
serviceable, and all passed the LSV Gear audit at the 
start of the season. With that in mind, and with 
consultation with Luke Treadwell (IRB Management 
Plan) along with other IRB drivers, we will not be 
purchasing a hull for the 2018/2019 season but will 
defer to prior to the 2019/2020 season. 

Boxing Day Swim 

Many thanks to Blane and James Paton for their setup 
work and Andy Nott in his coordinating role of the IRB’s 
for the swim this year. Also many thanks to all the 
drivers and crew that came down to help with the whole 
event.  

Training 

For the fifth year “IRB School” was successfully 
run over summer coordinated by Bernadene Hansen 
and Nathan Cester, with instructors Andrew Nott 
and Andrew Gibson, assisted by James Paton. This 
year we qualified:  

Drivers: Zali Cargill, Bridget Barnes, Hamish Wynn-Pope, 
Sam Warner, Matt Morton and Alasdair McKenzie. 
Crew: Fin Edmonds, Kip Edmonds, Ben Tobias-Hoyle, Will 
Johnston, Toby Johnston, Ben Hoskins and Tom Steele. 

Andrew Gibson has also started to train several adult 
bronze medallion holders for their drivers and crew 
awards, hopefully we will have all prospective Drivers 
and Crew qualified early next season. 

Nippers 

This is one of the most unsung jobs of the Nipper 
season, getting in early to set up boats and the courses, 
providing excellent water safety and then being the last 
to leave after the packing up of both courses and boats. 
I would like to thank Andrew O’Hara, Tony Puleio, Sam 

Warner and Matt Morton, and all of the members that 
have helped throughout our season as without their 
willingness to help, commitment and accountability the 
Nipper program would not run. 

Water Safety for Competitions 

An issue has become evident through this season in 
that the senior team finds themselves with limited to no 
IRB Driver or Crew qualified members attending 
competitions, something that is not an issue for the 
juniors, with continued upskilling of adult (Nipper 
parent) bronze medallion holders. 

This issue saw assistance from general qualified 
members to fulfil these senior carnival requirements 
this season, but this is not a long term fix. A solution 
could be, with a substantial number of the competition 
team members being qualified in the IRB’s, that a roster 
system of those team members may be required. 

Junior Competition 

With a competition season that saw Point Leo SLSC 
assigned several shifts for competitions that the Club 
was not going to attend, I must first of all thank Richard 
Hoskins, Sarah Jo Mason and Jason Romari for 
attempting to swap out those shifts. Secondly, great 
thanks to Andrew O’Hara for putting his hand up to help 
with those shifts and then all our other members who 
did jump in a boat or attempt to. I will be liaising with 
LSV prior to the coming season to avoid 
this recurring. Requirements were well met for all 
the Nipper competitions we attended and many 
thanks to all that assisted.  

Senior Competition 

As mentioned previously, the seniors have an issue of 
insufficient qualified members to fulfil the required 
competition shifts, so firstly many thanks to Iris Cassell 
and Tamara Brawn for their work to swap shifts in an 
attempt to get most of them at the Point Leo senior 
carnival. We had a large requirement for that day and 
the qualified members did an excellent job with their 
assistance so that the Senior Competition Team could 
take to the beach. One shift that was not able to be 
swapped was at the Anglesea competition which saw 
Luke and Mick Treadwell selflessly give their time and 
money to assist. 

As always the great stalwart of the IRB section, Chuck 
Warner deserves kudos for his assistance this season. 

NICHOLAS WOODS 
IRB Captain 
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Surf Sports 

Head Coach’s Report 

This season was highly successful at many levels 
including: 

• Improving our Senior State titles results to
5th and within striking distance of 2nd

• High participation at Aussies with three
finalists

• Nippers coming 8th at States with increased
participation rates

• A greatly improved training culture from
Nippers through to the highest level senior
athletes

• Emergence of a broader focus for the Surf
Sports section including the establishment of
the Victorian Surf Sports Academy and the
commencement of the LifeChanger program

Our Senior States and Aussies results were 
reflective of greater depth and a higher level of 
athlete capability. This resulted from a significant 
redevelopment of our senior training sessions 
including a shorter and less aggressive taper for 
States, and a greater focus on fitness 
development and maintenance throughout the 
season. Many of our athletes have matured and 
took on a high performance training program of 
10-15 sessions per week. The mentoring program
involving local and interstate mentors also had a
significant impact.

A pleasing aspect of our 2017/2018 season was 
the improved water results from Nippers at 
States. Thanks to Nick Clarke for showing great 
commitment to developing the Nippers in the Surf 

Sports training sessions. The Nippers seemed to 
also benefit greatly from the Thursday night 
iron/transition sessions where they joined in with 
the seniors. The collaborative and supportive 
approach demonstrated in these sessions was 
great to be a part of.   

Several senior athletes participated in the 
Victorian Surf Sports Academy (VSSA) in 
2017/2018. This program is dedicated to helping 
surf sports athletes from any club in Victoria to be 
their best self in life and surf sports competition. 
All of the VSSA athletes have a goal of attaining 
high level Aussies success. 

Looking towards season 2018/2019 and beyond 
there are amazing things happening including: 

• A number of our athletes aiming to represent
Australia in kayaking over the next 6 years.
The Club, in combination with VSSA, has
developed a high-performance kayak
program for surf sports athletes that has
already commenced training. This program
supported by coaches from Point Leo,
Mentone, Half Moon Bay and Alexandra
Headlands is based on the Avoca Kayak
Club that has produced elite surf and kayak
paddlers such as Lachie Tame and Riley
Fitzsimmons.

• Strong representation by Point Leo SLSC at
the Coolangatta Gold. Our dedicated
program has been written by Zayne Hammil
(Surfers Paradise Head Coach) and will
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involve high performance swim squads on 
the Peninsula and in Melbourne. 

• Further evolution of our surf sports training
program with new athletes coming to the
Club and some exciting new additions to the
Seniors through Nippers. This year the U17
group looks to be particularly strong, as well
as our ever-growing high calibre group in
Open.

I’d like to finish with a comment on the 
LifeChanger Program that has been piloted at 
Point Leo SLSC this year. Trevor Hendy and the 
LifeChanger group have had a huge impact on the 
coaches, parents, athletes and support people in 
the Surf Sports Program. This program has 

involved 6 sessions with Trevor and other 
mentors aiming to help young people become 
their best selves. The result has been a 
strengthening culture and connection of all those 
involved in the Surf Sports Program. Over 
2018/2019 we hope to extend the LifeChanger 
program to club members outside of surf sports 
and into the Peninsula community. 

We are always encouraging greater participation 
in surf sports as a beginner, aspiring athlete, 
master, coach, mentor or support person. There 
are opportunities for everyone to help support this 
growing and vibrant section of our club. If you are 
interested contact me on 0422 244 183 or 
surfsports@pointleoslsc.com.au. 

JON FORD 
Head Coach 

Team Manager’s Report

Well what a year it was for the Point Leo Senior 
Competition Team. The group is supported by a 
fantastic coaching team, observed and ranked by 
a panel of selectors and is made up of a proud 
bunch of athletes who are engaged and 
committed to the Club, training hard and striving 
to improve their level of skills in surf sports and 
progress. 

We started the season with the Endurance 
carnival at Half Moon Bay back in November; a 
warm up carnival before the real season work 
begins. This was a long course carnival for U12 
up and several of our junior athletes participated. 
This was a State Championship Event and we 
were able to come home with some silver and 
bronze medals to start our overall club point score 
off.  

This season we also attended competitions at 
Torquay, Anglesea, Fairhaven, Lorne, Seaspray 
and Point Leo. We had several senior athletes 
compete in the Champion Lifesaver Events for 
their first time, and as a result we brought home a 
bag of gold, silver and bronze medals 
incrementally adding more to our overall club 
score.  

We also had representation at the Pool Life 
Saving Championships and Pool State Team 
representation by Caitlin Robinson, whose 
individual efforts also added to our club points. 
Pool Lifesaving had a small attendance from the 

club, however athletes thinking of representation 
at National and International level are required to 
be recognised as competent in both Pool and 
Beach lifesaving events to be considered for 
eligibility. Congratulations also to go out to 
Isabella Austin, Josh Doherty and Lachlan 
Robinson who were selected for the Beach 
Victorian Interstates Team. 

The Senior State Titles were held at Apollo Bay 
where we had a rather rainy weekend, not quite 
as bad as Aussies 2017 amid the cyclones, but 
bad enough to cause rescheduling of several 
events. We had 34 athletes attend the 
Championships where we had some amazing 
results from our new generation of beach 
athletes. We saw a new club first with our Open 
Mixed Beach Relay winning gold. We placed in 
Individual Board, Ski and Surf Race events and 
our teams also worked to bring us success 
in Taplins, Surf Teams and Ski Relays. We 
brought home over 35 medals for our efforts. 
Over all Point Leo came 5th being only 6 points 
behind 4th and 22 points behind 3rd. We all 
enjoyed a well-deserved team dinner on the 
Saturday night at the Apollo Bay Hotel. 

Our Masters absolutely smashed it out of the park 
at their State Championships in Lorne with a 
massive bag of 40+ medals. We have a drafting 
deal with each Master competitor required to 
recruit a plus 1 for the 2019 Championships, and 

mailto:surfsports@pointleoslsc.com.au
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a potential Aussie onslaught at Broadbeach next 
April – so if you are keen let us know. 

We had a group go across to Aussies in 
Scarborough, Western Australia. Our Masters 
were successful again, winning 4 National 
medals. Well done to Frank Christian and Haydn 
Tierney for their excellent results. Our very own 
Tamara Brawn also scored herself a gold medal 
making up a rowing team for Lorne (we need to 
find our own boat crew for next season). 
Congratulations to you all. Our Youth team of 1 
and our Open team of 14 got to experience a 
great week of competition and some of our 
strongest results at Aussies for some time with 
several athletes making it to semi-finals and 5 
athletes in finals.  

Of course, it all couldn’t be done without the help 
and support of the families of Point Leo. Thank 
you to the Gary Tierney Foundation, Vantage 
Fuels, the Executive and the Committee and 
members of Point Leo SLSC. Thank you to 
officials and helpers: David Austin, Kevin Ball, 
Tamara Brawn, Caterina Cester, Tracey Cester, 

Kylie Clark, Nick Clarke, Tara Doherty, Paul 
Doherty, Andrew Gibson, Wendy Handley, Steve 
Laussen, Craig Ross, Di Summers, Tracey and 
Tony Metcalf, Travis Cargill, Jon Ford, Cameron 
McGill, Mitch Brown, Charli Cassell-Ashton, Mick 
Treadwell, Luke Treadwell, Nick Woods and the 
IRB team for supporting the Point Leo Carnival. 
Thanks also to Jackie Jackson of Mount Martha 
LSC for helping us out at States. Also to all the 
trailer drivers, result takers and coffee breakers. 
A big thank you to Andrew Welsh who always 
sorts out the gear for us. Also, many thanks 
to Stacey Lethlean for coordinating our Tin 
Shakes. After many years of this task Stacey is 
stepping down from this role, so thank you 
again for your hard work. 

Looking forward to next season, State Titles for 
Seniors will be held at Warrnambool. The Aussies 
will be at Burleigh Heads for the U14-15 and 
Broadbeach for U17 to Open and Masters.  

Finally, thank you to the athletes who never cease 
to amaze, keep united on the road to success and 
always autograph your work with quality. 

IRIS CASSELL 
Team Manager 
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Masters Report 

State Championships – Lorne 
We had another fantastic Masters Competition at 
Lorne. We fielded a small team of seventeen, 
being five female and twelve male athletes. 
Notable absences were champions Stacey, Dana 
and Bruce (although in Masters, everyone is a 
champion!). 

We finished second to Mordialloc for the third year 
in a row, but we are narrowing the points gap. 
Mordialloc LSC dominate through sheer weight of 
numbers. New recruits are vital if we are to claim 
the State title.  

Conditions were an absolute delight. A glorious 
sunny day with calm conditions and small swell. A 
summer weekend in Lorne is a great break at any 
time and competing at Masters with a bunch of 
friends makes for a lovely weekend. 

Almost every team member claimed at least one 
medal. Hayden Rydberg absolutely dominated his 
division with 8 Gold medals. Andrew Gibson was 
not far behind with 7 Gold. Jane Starr picked up a 
lazy 6 medals in the Women’s area. Nikki Alekna, 
with 4 medals in her first year of competition, 
eclipsed husband Darius (1 medal).  

We stepped up this year in Beach events, Marc 
Aliotti taking out Flags and Beach Sprint Gold, 
and Point Leo winning the 170+ Beach Relay. 
This is where we could use a lot more Point Leo 
Masters to pick up points. We just need people 
who can carry a baton for 80 metres. 

Our statistics: 64 ‘Top Six’ placings, comprising 
27 Gold, 13 Silver, 6 Bronze, 11 fourths, 6 fifths 
and 1 sixth place.

Congratulations to our Masters on another wonderful year. 

Andrew Gibson 
Darius Alekna 
Dave (Jack) Russell 
Frank Christian 
Hayden Rydberg 
Haydn Tierney 

Hugh Condon 
Ian Knight 
Jane Starr 
Jon Ford 
Karen Golding 
Marc Aliotti 

Michele Ford 
Nick Clarke 
Nikki Alekna 
Paul Doherty 
Wendy Dave 

If you are interested in competing in Masters for Point Leo please ring Andrew Gibson 0407332264 or 
watch for important messages and updates from the club Team Manager on TeamApp. 

ANDREW GIBSON 
Masters Competition Coordinator 
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National Championships – Scarborough WA 
The evergreen Point Leo Masters team again 
graced the Aussie titles this year at Scarborough 
in Western Australia. A small contingent of four 
competitors crossed the Nullarbor to don the 
orange cap, in descending age order: Frank 
Christian, Ian Knight, Jon Ford and the ‘young 
fella’ Haydn Tierney. 

Three days of some interesting shore swells and 
tides made for a testing environment. As usual the 
standard of competition was first class with many 
‘more mature’ surf lifesavers appearing to go 
quicker than they did in their youth! 

Day one (2 km swim) saw the sole Leo 
competitor, Haydn Tierney take the line in the 30-
39 year age group. After a gruelling long swim our 
fantastic ‘young fella’ finished an awesome 3rd 
place taking the bronze medal first up. What a 
way for Haydn and the club to start the Aussies!  

The first day of Masters only competition followed 
with many races, heats, finals and top line racing. 

A synopsis of Day One: 

• Haydn Tierney – Finalist and bronze
medal in the Men’s 35-39 Surf Race &
Ironman – Well done Haydn.

• Haydn Tierney: 4th in the 35-39 Tube Race
final – another super swim!

• Jon Ford: 11th in 50-54 years Ironman.

• Ian Knight: Finalist and 8th in 55-59 Surf
Race final.

• Frank Christian – Finalist and bronze
medal in the Male 60-64 Surf Race

• Frank Christian: After a bit of a wobbly start,
finished 4th in the 60-64 Tube Race final.
Those tubes can be tricky!

• Frank Christian and Jon Ford: Finalists and
6th in the Male 50-54 board rescue final.

Day Two: 

• Male 130 years Taplin Relay – Jon Ford (Ski)
Frank Christian (Swim) Haydn Tierney
(Board) – Finalists and 7th in the final! (We
believe this is the best Masters National
Taplin placing we have ever had!!).

• Male 150 Surf Teams – Haydn Tierney,
Frank Christian and Ian Knight – Finalists
and 8th in the final.

At the end of two days (three for Haydn!) it would 
be fair to say the bodies were tired, battered and 
sore, but extremely happy, not just with the results 
and medals, but to represent this great club and 
have so many younger members, support 
persons, team managers and club officials 
helping out and assisting every step of the way. 

The Masters hope to be there again in 2019 to 
represent this proud and wonderful club! 

IAN KNIGHT 

Masters Awards & Recognition 

Masters Athlete of the Year – Haydn Tierney 

Haydn has risen like a phoenix to the top of the Masters’ pack. Having more moderate success in past seasons, Haydn 
had phenomenal success at the 2018 Victorian Masters’ Championships scoring 5 Gold, 1 Silver and 2 Bronze Medals. 
He then went on to win 3 Bronze Medals at the 2018 Australian Masters Championships held at Scarborough Beach 
in the Surf Race, 2km Ocean Swim and Ironman. Haydn sets the pace and the model for the up and coming athletes 
showing that there is always another goal to achieve, and that hard work brings outstanding results which this year 
resulted in him being recognised as the Masters Athlete of the Year. 
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There were several competitors who achieved 
some impressive results by making the final in 
their respective individual events, including Caitlin 
Robinson and Cameron Austin, but despite 
missing out on a medal many of these athletes 
were compensated by winning a medal or two in 
beach relay events.  

While it was exciting watching the Point Leo 
Beach team’s success, there was no athlete that 
excelled more than Mietta Russell, she was 
simply spectacular. Mietta is not only a current 
Australian Track and Field Champion, she also 
proved she can run faster than any other sprinter 
on sand in Victoria. Mietta won 3 gold medals in 
individual events and 2 gold medals in team 
events at the Victorian Championships and for her 
outstanding achievements over the season she 
was awarded the Beach Competitor of the Year 
award at the recent Club Presentation Night. Well 
done Mietta, you truly deserve the accolades. 

The four team members of the Open Mixed relay 
were awarded the Team of the Year trophy at this 
year’s Presentation Night. Victorian 
Championship results are listed in full in the 
Senior State Championship Results section of the 
Annual Report. 

CRAIG ROSS 

Beach Section 

Despite the lack of competitors participating in the 
Beach Events during the season at regular 
carnivals we achieved some outstanding results, 
particularly at the Senior Victorian State 
Championships held at Apollo Bay. Ky 
Morgenthaler, Greta Ross, Mietta Russell and 
newcomer Lily McMeeken participated at a couple 
of carnivals throughout the season, most of whom 
made finals and even won a pennant or two in 
their respective events. 

At the Senior Victorian State Championships our 
very small group of beachies came home with 6 
Gold medals, 1 Silver and 4 finals placings. 

Lily McMeeken achieved some terrific results at 
regular carnivals and just missed out on being a 
medalist in the individual U19 Beach Sprint, 
placing 4th in the final at the State 
Championships.  

Despite breaking his toe Ky Morgenthaler 
managed to place 5th in the U19 Beach Sprint 
final but still secured a gold medal in the Open 
Mixed Relay. 

Tom McFarlane is a talented long-distance runner 
and he was rewarded for his training efforts by 
winning the Open 2km Beach Run. 

Swim Section 

The Surf Sports season was a highly competitive 
one for the swimmers, with our athletes making 
finals in swim related events at both State and 
National events. Notable swim athletes this 
season included Masters Frank Christian, 
Ian Knight and Haydn Tierney, as well as our 
Open swimmers Kate Brooks, Pat Hough, 
Spencer Blain-Bartle and Josh Doherty. 

A special mention goes to Kate Brooks, the 
recipient of our Swim Competitor of the Year 
award. Kate has been a member of the Club for 
many years now and has shown her talent this 
season. Kate is also a member of the leading 
Nunawading Swimming Club and has been a 
finalist at numerous Australian Swimming 
Championships. This year she has made a swift 

transition to surf and was successful in obtaining 
a bronze medal in Surf Race and gold in the Surf 
Belt Race at the State Titles. She partnered 
Bella Ford all the way to the final of the Open 
Women’s Board Rescue at the Australian Surf 
Life Saving Championships in Scarborough.  

The Surf Sports coaching team look forward to 
seeing improvements to the teams’ success next 
season, along with the development of a surf 
lifesaving focused swimming squad to target high 
performance athletes unable to currently secure 
consistent surf swimming training as part of the 
broader VSSA program initiative. 

SAMUEL RICHARDSON 
Swim Captain 



Surf Sports Recognition 

Open Male Athlete of the Year - Lachlan Robinson 

Lachlan has worked intensely hard over the past season and taken on a newfound appreciation for his sport, 
coaching and an increasing role in the leadership group of the Point Leo Senior Surf Sports Team. He has been 
involved in coaching and mentoring of the younger team members and his own personal development over the 
season has seen him mature as an athlete. Lachlan has been extremely successful in maintaining his spot in the 
A Grade division of Ski racing for the entire season. He was also selected to represent Victoria in the 2018 
Interstates team events held in Adelaide in January this year. Lachlan had a successful time at the Aussies making 
it to the final in Open Double Ski.  

Open Female Athlete of the Year - Isabella Ford 

Bella is another athlete that is coming of age at our club, showing increased maturity in taking on a greater 
leadership role. Bella was successful at the Victorian State Titles this year gaining a silver medal in the Open 
Women’s Single Ski Race. She has performed consistently well at this Open level, and regularly championed the 
team to get involved and leading by example. She also achieved a bronze medal at the Champion Lifesaver event 
held at Mordialloc LSC. Aussies was also successful for Bella who, with her partner Kate Brooks, made it to the 
final in Open Women’s Board Rescue.  

Junior Male Athlete of the Year - Nick Ford 

Nick has developed his ski paddling to a new level resulting in him winning a silver medal at the State Titles 
in Apollo Bay this year. He is also a great team member formulating a strong bond with his teammates and 
always at the forefront of encouraging involvement in all aspects of training and competition. He has had a 
successful season winning gold in the U19 double ski and gold in board rescue for the second consecutive year. 
He obtained a silver medal in the U19 Champion Lifesaver event. 

Junior Female Athlete of the Year - Isabella Austin 

Isabella has had resonating success all through the year. A strong and powerful athlete, her work ethic is one to 
be commended. Isabella was selected to represent Victoria in the 2018 Interstates team events held in Adelaide 
in January this year. She had outstanding results at the State Titles earning four individual medals, was instrumental 
in gaining six team medals as well as a bronze in the U17 Champion Lifesaver event. At the Aussies Isabella 
made it through to the final in the U17 single ski race as well as the quarter final of the U17 Ironwomen 
event. Isabella is an athlete to watch out for as if she keeps up this level of competition she will have a very bright 
future in the sport. 

Team of the Year - Open Mixed Beach Relay 

This was an exciting event, creating club history and bringing together four unsuspecting yet talented athletes to 
win the inaugural title of this new event of the beach and track. Our winning team was made up of our newest 
recruit, a sprint champion from Western Australia, Lily McMeeken; back with a vengeance super star sprint and 
beach athlete Mietta Russell; renowned for his talent as a sprint and flags champion Ky Morgenthaler; and recently 
returned to lifesaving competition, swimming and running athlete Spencer Blain-Bartle. This awesome foursome 
gave a smashing performance to win this event. Cannot wait to see these athletes in action next season. 

Board and Ski Competitor of the Year - Matthew Graves 

Matt Graves decided this year to target the Ironman event setting upon a heavy training program of 15 sessions a 
week. Matt worked hard to overcome a shoulder injury and to develop his other skills which resulted in him placing 
5th in the Open Ironman event at the State Titles. Matt’s strength has always been his ski paddling, and this showed 
through when he made the Open Aussies double ski final with Lachlan Robinson. 
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Junior Surf Life Saving Program 

 

Once again the Junior Surf Lifesaving Program 
(JSLP) was blessed this season with excellent 
conditions over the intensive program during the 
summer holidays. With calm and relatively warm 
waters our Nippers developed their confidence 
and abilities on land and in the ocean, including 
surf education.  

These skills are the foundations of Life Saving. 
They help our children be healthy and safe and 
start teaching them skills to help others. Nippers 
also provides opportunities for members to make 
friends, have fun and challenge themselves in 
carnivals against the State’s best. Coordinating 
such enthusiastic, happy Nippers and energetic, 
engaged parents and volunteers is an absolute 
privilege.  

For our most enthusiastic Nippers, training started 
in September 2017 and continued through to 
March 2018. This year a group of Nippers and 
their parents visited the Gold Coast in September 
2017 to develop their skills in true surf conditions. 
They also had the amazing opportunity to train 
with seniors and be coached and mentored by 
Trevor Hendy, Ali Day, Jett Kenny, Harriet Brown 
and Jamo Porter.  

What an experience and inspiration to our 
Nippers (and their parents) to learn from such 
legends of the sport. The Gold Coast Camp was 
an enormous success, providing Nippers with an 
early opportunity to learn new skills, make or 
renew friendships and build training loads. My 
thanks to all the volunteers, coaches, seniors and 
helpers who made the event successful.  

This year our competition team attended carnivals 
at Cosy Corner, Chelsea, Mordialloc, South 

Melbourne and Lorne. We also sent a strong team 
of more than 90 Nippers to the Junior State 
Lifesaving Championships in Warrnambool where 
they had heaps of fun while testing themselves 
against the State’s best. Congratulations to all 
Nippers who participated and gave their very best 
individually or as part of a team. There were many 
fantastic achievements by our Nippers and the 
way they conducted themselves on the beach. A 
real highlight was the Club participating formally 
in the March Past event for the first time in many 
years and placing 5th. My thanks once again to 
Nick Clarke for his enthusiasm and energy 
running competition training for Nippers under our 
Junior Surf Sports Program banner all season. 
And also to Jason Romari for his tireless efforts 
as Competition Team Manager. 

The popularity of surf lifesaving is evident from the 
growing number of Nippers attending carnivals. 
Of course, managing large numbers tries 
everyone’s patience on the beach. Thank you to 
all the parents, age managers and assistants, 
officials and water safety for their commitment, 
dedication and patience supporting their children 
and other Nippers at these carnivals.  

Congratulations to our Club Captains for their 
contributions to the Nipper program this season – 
Jasper Romari and Bridie Hipwell – and Vice 
Captains – Oscar Hoskins and Charlotte 
Lillywhite. We thank all the Under 14s for their 
enthusiasm and contributions to Nippers over 
their journey and hope that we continue to see 
them at and around the Club. A Nipper’s lifesaving 
journey does not end at U14, nor stop at the gates 
of Point Leo. Nippers can continue in lifesaving 
and obtain their Bronze Medallion, learn to crew 
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IRBs, train and compete in senior competitions, 
volunteer to patrol the beach, help with the 
Disabled Surfing Day or Multicultural Day or 
simply give back to the Nippers program by 
participating in Water Safety or as an Activity 
Leader. Life Saving Victoria also offers 
development and leadership opportunities for our 
Nippers, for example, the U13 and U15 
Development Camps, and the Champion Junior 
Lifesaver Award. I encourage all Nippers to take 
full advantage of these opportunities.  

With 459 enrolled Nippers, it is only through 
volunteers that our program can function or even 
exist. Volunteers are the true spirit of our program. 
On any given Nippers day we have a multitude of 
parents and volunteers helping out in a wide 
variety of roles – Registrar, Age Managers and 
Assistants, Activity Leaders, Coaches, 
Competition Team Leader, Water Safety 

Coordinators, Water Safety, First Aid, Beach Set 
Up volunteers, IRB Drivers and Crew, Uniform 
Shop volunteers, Surf Ed Teachers, Gear 
Stewards, Administrators and BBQ helpers. 
Thank you to everyone who puts up their hand – 
you are all simply amazing. My special thanks to 
Sarah-Jo Mason for stepping in and coordinating 
the program during my absence on work 
commitments.  

To those parents who haven’t yet volunteered, 
please don’t be shy next year. We need you to 
volunteer to help in any way you can!  

This season our Nippers made new friends and 
learned about keeping safe in the water, and 
importantly, had FUN in a safe and inclusive 
environment! To all our Nippers – keep up the 
swimming over winter and we look forward to 
seeing you on the beach next season.

RICHARD HOSKINS 
Junior Surf Life Saving Program Coordinator 
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Members & 
Club Life 

Cadet Program 

This season was another exciting one for the 
Cadets section, with great involvement and 
engagement over a vast range of activities. I 
am very proud of Point Leo’s commitment to 
cultivate an inclusive and welcoming culture. 
This season the Cadets focused on activities 
that reinforced this approach. 

As always, Cadets turned up in droves to provide 
Water Safety for the Nippers. The Nippers 
program cannot run without the contribution of 
volunteers for this vital role, and everyone is very 
grateful to those who give their time. In addition to 
giving Cadets the opportunity to practice their 
learned skills, providing water safety also gives 
the Nippers positive role models and an 
opportunity to see the ‘big kids’ in action. Our new 
crop of Bronzies were also heavily involved in 
providing Water Safety this year and were keen to 
put their newly acquired skills into action. 
Hopefully, Cadet participation in this crucial area 
of lifesaving will continue to grow from strength to 
strength. 

The roaring success of this year’s Multicultural 
Surf Day is a testament to the Cadets who 
volunteered their time and helped. I could not be 
prouder of how warm and welcoming our Cadets 
were, providing a supportive and encouraging 

environment for our guests. I must extend a huge 
thank you to everyone who was involved – 
whether you manned the barbeque, loaned 
wetsuits or provided water safety, this very 
important day could not have occurred without 
your generosity. As a Club, we are so proud of 
this day and the positive impact it has both on our 
Cadets and our guests. Our Cadets provided not 
only an excellent example of lifesaving in action, 
but comradery with the Cranbourne kids and the 
day was enjoyed by everyone involved. We are 
already looking forward to the next one.  

The competition section continues to grow in 
leaps and bounds and watching the team’s 
continued successes is a delight. A more 
comprehensive report of their successes will be 
featured in other reports, but I would like to 
congratulate every member of the competition 
team on their efforts. In addition to being a highly 
skilled and well trained competition team, they 
also have a reputation as being a supportive and 
inclusive team that celebrates every effort.  

Next season sees the Cadets section look 
towards increasing participation in water safety 
and patrols. A focus is going to be encouraging 
SRCs and Bronzies to gain further awards and 
build on their skills. Diversity and depth in awards 
is integral in our development as a Surf Life 
Saving Club, and crucial in our ability to serve the 
public. The comradery prevalent in the Cadets 
section is commendable, and a key in ensuring a 
high turnout at both water safety and patrols.  

I look forward to seeing the Cadets section 
continue to grow and expand next season. 

SOPHIE WELSH 
Cadet Coordinator 
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Honorary Life Members 

At the 2017 Annual General Meeting of the Point Leo Surf 
Lifesaving Club Simone Munro was unanimously voted in as 
the newest Honorary Life Member of the Club. 

Simone joined Point Leo SLSC as a 12-year-old in 1994. Since 
gaining her Surf Rescue Certificate in 1996 and then her Bronze 
Medallion in 1997 she has completed a total of 442.5 patrol hours 
until taking maternity leave from active duty in 2013. 

During her active membership period she also gained the following 
awards: Radio Certificate, Advanced Resuscitation, IRB Crew, 
Senior First Aid, Spinal Management, Training Officer (Bronze, 
ART) and Assessor (Bronze, ART). 

From the early days it was clear that Simone was a future leader 
for the Club and the broader Lifesaving movement. She pursued 
development opportunities with vigour, successfully completing the 
National Leadership Development Camp, the SLSA Training 
Conference and was a 2008/9 recipient of the Lifesaving Victoria 
Building Leaders Scholarship. During this period she was the Club 
delegate to Lifesaving Victoria on Lifesaving Operations and was a 
member of LSV Executive for Youth and Leadership (now called 
Membership and Leadership Development Council). 

Simone became an active Committee member at an early age 
taking on a range of roles including Vice President, Mine Editor, 
Cadet Coordinator, Chief Instructor and Club Captain. After starting 
her family, she came back onto the Committee as Social Secretary. 

She also excelled as a competitor and coach in R & R. This was 
honoured by her induction into the Point Leo SLSC Hall of Fame 
for five national medals (three of them Gold) and 23 medals at 
Senior State titles as a competitor. She has also coached three 
teams to medals.  

Her close relationship with the Tierney family, and as a role model 
for young members in the club, made her an excellent addition to 
the Gary Tierney Foundation Board in 2013. 

For over 23 years Simone has provided the Club and the Lifesaving 
movement with outstanding service. Her passion for providing 
opportunities to young people and growing R & R is evident in 
everything that she does. She is an excellent example of the type 
of members that the Club strives to develop and truly reflects the 
qualities and commitment of the Honorary Life Members. 

TAMARA BRAWN 
Honorary Life Members Committee 
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Gary Tierney Foundation 

Achievements – the Past 12 Months 

Over the year, the Foundation has had success 
with its core activities and has been excited to 
adopt some new approaches. We have continued 
to offer the Foundation Fellowship and have also 
been proud to provide special purpose grants to 
worthy recipients. As our funding situation has 
been sound and stable, we have been thrilled to 
be also able to offer additional financial support 
for specific activities undertaken by young 
lifesavers in the Club.  

In the past 12 months annual Fellowship grants 
totalling $4,000 were made (covering existing 
Fellows plus our 2018 Fellow). Funding 
assistance of $2800 was provided to 14 Point Leo 
active members aged under 25, competing in the 
National Titles in Scarborough, WA, and $1000 in 
total was provided to ten of the Club’s 
Coolangatta Gold competitors to assist with entry 
fees and expenses. These payments to club 
members are in line with the Gary Tierney 
Foundation’s Governance Charter. 

During the past year the Advisory Board of the 
Foundation has adopted a low-key approach to 
fundraising. Consistent with our long-term 
strategy, there were no fundraising events held 
during the past 12 months with income being 
sourced from donations and investment income. 
This approach is intended to allow the Club to 
focus on fundraising for the major clubhouse 
facility redevelopment. 

The Foundation’s initial capital base target of 
$200,000 was attained in the previous financial 
year, and in reviewing the situation the Board is 
confident that the financial position is sufficient to 
finance the foreseeable future grant and bursary 
outgoings. The situation will remain under review. 

Financials 

At the 30th April 2018 the Foundation’s fund 
balance stood at $228,130, an increase of $7,679 
over the balance as at 30th April 2017. Over the 
12-month period income to the Foundation
consisted of $8,450 from donations and $7,029 
investment earnings (mostly bank interest). 
Details of the outgoings of $7,800 being 
payments to club members are included in the 
previous paragraph. 

A review of the Foundation’s investment strategy 
was carried out during the year. A longer-term 
investment outlook is now considered appropriate 
and a diversified investment strategy has been 
adopted, with an asset allocation of 1/3 of capital 
in balanced investments (including equities); and 
2/3 in Term Deposits (with a small working capital 
cash at bank). The decision has been made to 
hold the medium to long term investments 
through a balanced managed fund. An initial 
investment of $20,000 was made early in the year 
in the Surf Life Saving Foundation (SLSF) Rescue 
Fund, a charitable managed investment scheme. 
In October 2017 an additional $50,000 was 
invested in the SLSF Rescue Fund. 

Gary Tierney Foundation 2018 Fellow – 
Lachlan Robinson 

The 2018 Fellow is Lachlan Robinson. Lachlan 
joined Point Leo SLSC as a Nipper in 2005 and 
as a Nipper he showed his love of competition 
and his ability to compete successfully on the 
beach and in the water. In those years Point Leo 
Nippers were a strong force at carnivals and at 
the State Titles, and Lachlan played a significant 
role in those successes.

In his last two years as a Nipper Lachie 
developed his leadership skills as an Activity 
Leader with the Nippers assisting club coaches 
in beach activities and disciplines and being 
appointed Nipper Vice-captain. Following on 
from gaining his Bronze Medallion in 2015, and 
joining senior ranks, Lachie continued his 
leadership role in the Club by helping at Bronze 
camps and assisting with coaching at senior 
training sessions, and in general terms 
becoming a strong member of the club’s 
competitive group. 

It  is as a club competitor that Lachie has  really 
made his mark. Specifically, in board, ski and 
team events he has been outstanding not only 
at local beach carnivals, but also at State and 
National levels. Last season he was part of the 
Club’s senior male Taplin Relay Team that won 
Gold at the States at Port Fairy – an historic first 
for Point Leo SLSC. Lachie’s willingness to train 



Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. | ABN 83 471 063 765 | pointleoslsc.com.au Page 34 of 54 

hard in the gym and in the water is well known 
around the Club and he has set himself long 
term goals that will not only will improve his 
status as a competitor but will continue to 
develop the team culture of the club’s 
competitive group. 

Previous recipients of the Fellowship Awards are: 

• 2011: Lachlan Pearse
• 2012: Victoria Roadnight & Tom McFarlane
• 2013: Rose Anderson
• 2014: Jack Garner
• 2015: Isabella Ford & Zachary Richter
• 2016: Caleb Gray
• 2017: Brittany Morgenthaler & Andrew Nott

The Fellowship Award Presentation was made 
this year at the Club’s extremely well attended 
Annual Muso Night held on 20th January 2018. 
Haydn Tierney made the presentation on behalf 
of the Tierney family and the Foundation. 

The Future 

The Foundation Advisory Board has confirmed 
that its primary purpose is: 

• Prudential management of the Fund Corpus;
and if necessary growing that Corpus.
Includes investment strategy and allocation

• Making grants and other funding awards
• Otherwise supporting Fellows

The Foundation does not seek to be a substitute 
for the organisation of Club Social events and 
development programs/initiatives for members 
which are matters for the full Club Committee. It 
is available to support those activities. The 
Foundation’s focus will be on Fellowship Grants; 
other assistance grants to younger members; and 
support for other proposals that the Foundation 
Board considers meet its objectives.  

An emerging area of interest is the possibility of 
funding a Point Leo Leadership Development 
program directed at young active club members. 
A draft proposal is currently under consideration 
and will hopefully commence later in 2018. The 

Foundation will continue to provide grants or 
funding as Fellowship Grants or as Single 
Purpose Grants, all with the objective of 
encouraging younger members of Point Leo 
SLSC to fulfil their potential in Surf Lifesaving. 
And later this year, in response to strong interest, 
it is planned to reintroduce the Point Leo Family 
Walk, a season opener for club members and 
family and friends.  

Gary Tierney Foundation Governance 

The Gary Tierney Foundation is managed by an 
Advisory Board. At the 30th April 2018, the Board 
consisted of Tom Mollenkopf (Chairperson), John 
Horwood, Ian Knight, Richard Batchelor, Haydn 
Tierney, Isabella Ford and Kelvin Anderson. The 
Foundation’s Patron is Louise Tierney. 

During the year there were three retirements from 
the Advisory Board: Andrew Mansour, Simone 
Munro and Lachlan Pearse. The Club Committee, 
acting on the recommendation of the Advisory 
Board, appointed Isabella Ford and Kelvin 
Anderson to the Board. Since 30th April 2018 
Richard Batchelor has advised his intention to 
also leave the Advisory Board. Tamara Brawn 
has recently been appointed to Richard’s vacant 
seat. Both Andrew and Richard played significant 
roles in establishing the legal and financial 
direction of the Gary Tierney Foundation, and 
Simone and Lachlan have added their insights as 
more recent patrolling and competing members of 
the Club. We extend sincere thanks to each of 
them for their contributions. Over the past 12 
months the Advisory Board has met formally face-
to-face on three occasions and also convened 
electronically on a number of other occasions. 

The Foundation’s finances are audited annually 
as part of the Club’s statutory audit. A separate 
bank account is maintained to ensure that 
donations to the Foundation are quarantined and 
only used in accordance with the Foundation’s 
Governance Charter. 

TOM MOLLENKOPF 
Chairperson, Gary Tierney Foundation
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Flinders Hotel Point Leo Swim Classic 

There was a record number of entrants in the 
Boxing Day Swim Classic 2017, with over 450 
people signing up for the various events, and 
for the first time in distant memory the 
weather was in the high 20's! 

We continue to enjoy great support from those 
who sponsor the event, including Flinders Hotel, 
the Balnarring and District Community Bank 
Branch of the Bendigo Bank, Point Leo General 
Store and Paton Estate Agents. We also had a 
number of new sponsors come onboard, including 
Mornington Prime Cuts and Burnley Brewing, who 
led the post-race festivities.  

After a long-standing sponsorship arrangement 
with the club, Flinders Hotel have indicated that 
2017 would be their last year as the major 
sponsor, although they have indicated a 
willingness to continue to sponsor the event with 
a lesser contribution. The club has been very 
grateful for the significant support they have 

offered over the past 6 years and we look forward 
to continuing to promote the relationship. If you, 
or a business you are associated with, are 
interested in becoming the naming sponsor of the 
event, please send me an email 
(mick.treadwell@gmail.com).  

A special thanks to Nick Woods and Jon Ford who 
helped to coordinate the inaugural post-race 'Leo 
on the Green' initiative, with music, food and 
beverages – this was a fantastic event that 
promises to grow over the coming years. A big 
thank you to all who helped, from those sorting 
out entries and T-shirts, the setup/pack-up crew, 
first aid team, ceremony team, food organisers, 
water safety personnel, pre-entrant bag packers, 
t-shirt designer/organiser, those who manned the
front gate and miscellaneous role fillers, it was
terrific to see so many people turn up and lend a
hand in whatever capacity they could.

MICHAEL TREADWELL 
Swim Classic Director 

mailto:mick.treadwell@gmail.com
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Gear & Equipment 

As a club of more than 1,000 members, Point Leo 
SLSC is obliged to maintain a vast inventory of 
equipment in order to meet the club’s patrol, 
training and competition needs. Maintenance of 
this equipment and purchasing of new equipment 
follows a familiar rhythm each year. Patrol, rescue 
and first aid equipment are assessed over the 
winter months in advance of the LSV Gear 
Inspection in October. Damaged equipment is 
repaired, obsolete equipment is discarded and 
replacement equipment sourced. Considerable 
effort is required to satisfy SLSA prescribed 
equipment guidelines for us to successfully pass 
Gear Inspection and be well prepared for a 
season of patrols. 

Board camps are usually held during the 
September holidays where cadet boards and 
nipper boards are required. Up to 30 cadet boards 
are needed for this camp and preparation for 
these camps require many hours of repairing 
previously damaged boards during the winter 
months. Each year new boards are purchased to 
increase our stock of boards, but a considerable 
amount of time is spent on reviving older boards 
to provide for an expanding training program. 

Repair and maintenance of these boards further 
intensifies once nippers and seniors summer 
training commences. Nick Clarke undertakes the 
majority of board repairs and repairs over 50 
boards in a season. This is an enormous task and 
Nick’s generosity is greatly appreciated. 

There were several significant new equipment 
purchases over the season. Two new 
defibrillators were purchased to replace our old 
ones. Grant money was spent on a variety of 
items including rescue boards, bumbags and 
whistles. As usual a number of new nipper boards 
were purchased and quickly put to good use over 
summer. 

As a volunteer organisation we rely extensively on 
the generosity of members to provide their time 
and resources. The Legends patrol was very 
active over summer and conducted several mini-
working bees where equipment and clubhouse 
maintenance were undertaken. Thank you to this 
dedicated band of volunteers for the multitude of 
tasks completed. Increasingly we require off-site 
storage for some of our larger equipment during 
the winter months. A big thank you to Ashton 
and Amanda Woolley for allowing us use of their 
shed to store the nipper trailer and old ATV. We 
are still in need of some off-site storage space 
and would like to hear from any members who 
may be able to assist. 

Thanks to Andrew Gibson, Nick Woods and 
Morgan Jones for the many hours spent preparing 
equipment for Gear Inspection and then the 
continued maintenance throughout the season. 
Thanks to all the coaches and activity leaders who 
continue to push the message of expected board 
and ski care. 

ANDREW WELSH 
Gear Steward 
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Clubhouse & Facilities 

There are two big clubhouse stories from this season: 

Boardwalk  

The Club was a major contributor, along with the 
Foreshore Committee and Disabled Surfing, to 
the construction of an All-Abilities Boardwalk from 
the Clubhouse to the beach. As well as providing 
access for people with physical restrictions, it 
gives an alternative access to separate vehicles 
and pedestrians during events, and a fantastic 
viewing platform for patrols. It is a fantastic 
addition to the Point Leo precinct. 

Amenities Renewal 

Work has finally started on our renovation of 
toilets, change-rooms and kitchen. This is the 
second phase of a complete conversion from an 
old-style Lifesaving Club to a modern Community 
Hub. 

There were four Working Bees this season. Two 
were by the Legends Patrol and others were to 
remove the kitchen, gym and clothing shop prior 
to the major renovation. 

LSV conducted a facilities review of all 
clubhouses, identifying major flaws and serious 
safety concerns. Funding was provided to repair 
those items identified at Point Leo and the work 
will progress in tandem with renovation works. 

Extensive repairs were done on the gear shed 
roof to try and get a couple more years out of it. 

Once again the Woods family did the Summer 
Caretaker role, keeping buildings and guests in 
order over the holidays. Rob and Deb Howell 
returned for the Winter, providing cleaning and 
security services. 

A major project was to remove racks from one of 
our containers, fit them to a contractor’s container 
and load all the competition craft for WA Aussies. 
This was done in half a day by a team of 
competitors, who later reversed the process when 
all the gear arrived back from Perth. 

ANDREW GIBSON 
Clubhouse Administrator 

Here’s a list of some of the other jobs we completed

Build separate storage space 
in Patrol Room 
Bunk repairs 
Cardboard to recycling Carpark 
potholes bitumen Clean 
freezers 
Clean sliding door tracks Clean 
windows 
Clear drains north door 
Fit external lock to Gear Shed 
Flush water boiler 
Fly screens 

Grease trailers 
Gym roof leak(s) 
Install shelves in Clothing 
Store Insulate courtyard tap 
Junk to tip 
Lube gym gear 
Lube hitches and jockeys 
Lubricate locks 
Modify locking system for 
construction works 
Paint outdoor furniture 
Remove shade sails for winter 

Remove shelving Uniform 
Shop
Repair and lube tents 
Repair locking system 
Replace shade sails 
Roof flashing 
Safety fencing for boardwalk 
construction 
Trim Ti-trees 
Update Honour Boards
Various door repairs 
Wash spit-roaster 
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Point Leo SLSC Bobbas 

The past 12 months has been very similar to 
previous years for the Bobbas. We have had three 
members lunches at the Kooyong Lawn Tennis 
Club and also the Bobbas and Partners lunch 
at the clubhouse at Point Leo. All were well 
attended, although numbers were a little 
down at the Partners lunch, which was 
held earlier than previous years, because 
of the clubhouse renovations commencing 
after Easter. 

There were two significant highlights. The 
Bobbas constitution is dated May 1968 and was 
prepared following the first official meeting 
of The Bobbanarrings, as the Bobbas were 
initially titled. Office bearers were named in this 
document with the first President being Peter 
Braithwaite. It didn’t take the brains trust long 
to work out that May 2018 is the 50th 
Anniversary of the Bobbas and we marked 
that milestone at the Bobbas and Partners 
lunch. Peter Braithwaite spoke about the early 
Bobbas days particularly noting the social 
functions, the children’s Xmas parties at Point Leo 
and the support that the Bobbas gave the Club 
where and whenever possible, particularly at 
carnivals held at Point Leo. 

Peter also presented the Club with a plaque 
detailing the names of a number of the 
early active members of Point Leo SLSC, many 
are still members of the Bobbas. It is planned to 
display the plaque, prepared by Alf 
Treadwell, in the entrance to the renovated 
clubhouse.  

Back in mid-2017 Don ‘Cammie” Campbell 
decided to commission a Balnarring 
artist Margaret Rees to prepare a painting that 
reflected the early days at Point Leo SLSC. 
Margaret has 

done a wonderful job, particularly as she was 
bombarded with any number of suggestions for 
the painting content. The painting titled “The Point 
Leo Pioneering Heritage” was handed over to 
Cammie at the Bobbas and Partners lunch, and 
he in turn presented it to the Bobbas. 

When appropriate Cammie, on behalf of the 
Bobbas, will donate the painting to the Club and it 
will be hung in the clubhouse permanently. 
Cammie is quite happy to state the painting 
project became an obsession with him and it is a 
terrific gesture by him that does reflect his love for 
Point Leo SLSC and his memories of those early 
days at Point Leo. Thank you, Don Campbell and 
well done, Margaret Rees. 

The Bobbas were well represented at Aussies 
Masters carnival held recently at Scarborough, 
WA. Regulars, Ian Knight and Frank Christian 
performed well again, with Frank picking up a 
Bronze in the 60-64 years Surf Race. Apprentice 
Bobba, Haydn Tierney, son of the late Gary, won 
Bronze in 3 events in the 35-39 age group, whilst 
Tamara Brawn won Gold in the over 160 Boat 
Race rowing for Lorne. Club coach Jon Ford also 
made finals in team events with Knightie and 
Frank. 

The Bobbas are well aware of the fact that a 
number of the original members are getting on in 
years, and whilst not one of them will admit it, they 
are not going to be around forever. A plan to 
expand membership is a subject that will be 
discussed and finalised over the next few months 
and once formulated will be implemented 
forthwith. 

JOHN HORWOOD 
Bobbas Convenor 



Obituary 

Geoffrey Walter Waters 

Life Member and Hall of Famer Geoff (Blab) Waters passed away on 1st August 2017. Geoff gained 
his Bronze Medallion with Point Leo SLSC and was a club stalwart until he transferred to Ocean Grove 
SLSC in 1998. Geoff had many administrative roles at Point Leo. He was Club President from 1980 to 
1982, Club Captain on three occasions over a nine-year period and Chief Instructor from 1979 to 1981. 

However, it was in the competition area that Geoff excelled, initially as a competitor then as a coach. In 
1965 Geoff won Gold at the States as a member of a very successful beach relay team and in 1964 
was a member of the Junior R & R team that won Gold in the States and finished a close second at the 
Aussies in big seas at Collaroy, NSW. 

Geoff then concentrated on coaching R & R, and in doing so he recruited a number of top swimmers to 
the club and played a significant mentoring role in settling them into the club. As a coach Geoff won 
Gold in 1968-69 with a Junior R & R team, with the U16 5 Man R & R in 1997-98 and with the Open 
Women’s R & R 2010-11. On several occasions there were Silver and Bronze medals with R & R teams 
at the Aussies. 

Following Geoff’s passing there were a number of tributes from his old club mates and probably one 
from Rob Woodhouse summed up everyone’s thoughts – “Blab was larger than life in every way and 
played a big role in getting dozens of swimmers to Leo in the 1980s including our family”. 

Geoff was awarded Honorary Life Membership with Point Leo SLSC in 1977 and was inducted into the 
club’s Hall of Fame in 2005. 

Following his departure from Leo in 1998 he coached R & R in a number of Victorian clubs and almost 
single handedly was responsible for a resurgence of R & R in this state. He was a member of several 
LSV and SLSA committees and was awarded Life Membership of LSV in 2012. 

To honour his services to surf lifesaving Geoff was posthumously inducted into the SLSA Hall of Fame 
and he received an OAM in the June 2018 Queens Birthday Awards. 

The Club’s thoughts are with Geoff’s wife Sue, his son Steven and his daughter Lisa. 
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Recognition & 
Statistics 

President’s Awards 

Three President’s Awards are presented annually, one Junior, one Senior and the Dick Catterick 
Award. They are the highest annual awards that the Club can bestow on one of its members. 
The trophies are awarded on the basis of the acceptance of the duties of a member and the 
provision of leadership in the Club and Life Saving Victoria activities, competitive performance, 
fostering of team spirit and personal conduct and demeanour. 

President’s Award (Junior) – Andrew Nott 
This award recognises a Junior member (U15 – U19) who has made an outstanding contribution to the Point Leo 
SLSC and has demonstrated leadership in one or more Club and Life Saving Victoria activities, competitive 
performance, fostering of team spirit and personal conduct and demeanour. 

Andy was elected Club Vice Captain this year and his leadership and maturity belie his youth. Andy 
has continued to make a major contribution to key Club activities including patrols, training and 
social activities. Andy received an Outstanding Achievement Award at the 2018 Presentation 
Night for undertaking a major rescue on Westernport Bay. This was away from Point Leo beach and 
well outside any patrolled area. He was able to rescue a child that had become trapped under an 
upturned boat and to transport the unconscious child and his father to shore where he provided 
lifesaving resuscitation. Congratulations to Andy for his achievements and for providing inspirational 
leadership, particularly to our young members. 

President’s Award (Senior) – Jon Ford 
This award recognises a member who has made an outstanding contribution to the Point Leo SLSC and has 
demonstrated leadership in one or more Club and Life Saving Victoria activities, competitive performance, fostering 
of team spirit and personal conduct. 

Jon Ford provides inspirational dedication and leadership as Head Coach and was this year awarded 
the Senior President’s Award in recognition of this and his many other contributions: organising and 
performing at the ever sensational Muso Night; providing valuable Building Sub-Committee input; 
initiating the Victorian Surf Sports Academy, a venture aimed at bringing together competitors across 
all Victorian Clubs to provide an inclusive training platform with access to top coaches in a non-partisan 
environment; and initiating a relationship with the LifeChanger organisation.  

Dick Catterick Award – (Best Club Member) – Nicholas Woods 
This award recognises a member who has made an outstanding all-round contribution during the season. 
Presented in memory of the late Dick Catterick who was the Clubhouse caretaker/supervisor in the 1970s and 
1980s. 

This season saw Nick Woods recognised as the most outstanding Club member. Nick has continued 
to make significant contributions in his role as an Age Manager and as the Club caretaker and Bar 
Manager over summer. Nick and his family have been at the forefront of organising and running many 
social events at the Club, and this season Nick organised in-house training for Responsible Service of 
Alcohol. Nick has also taken on two additional and significant roles in the last season: firstly in leading 
a new patrol group – the Woodchucks; and secondly in taking on the important role of IRB captain. Well 
done Nick and thank you for your stellar contribution. 



Awards Recipients 

Dick Catterick Memorial Award Best Club Member Nicholas Woods 
Point Leo SLSC Senior President's Award Jon Ford 
Point Leo SLSC Junior President's Award Andrew Nott 
Club Captain’s Award Brittany Morgenthaler 
Outstanding Achievement of the Year Luke Treadwell 
Outstanding Achievement of the Year Michael Treadwell 
Outstanding Achievement of the Year Andrew Nott 

Vigilance and Service Awards 

Senior Patroller of the Year Luke Treadwell 
Junior Patroller of the Year Bodhi Woods 
Patrol Hours Bronze Award 50+ hours Adam Lipszyc 

Andrew Nott 
James Paton 
Edward Warner 
Nicholas Woods 

Surf Sports Awards 

Male Athlete of the Year Lachlan Robinson 
Female Athlete of the Year Isabella Ford 
Junior Female Athlete of the Year Isabella Austin 
Junior Male Athlete of the Year Nicholas Ford 
Masters Athlete of the Year Haydn Tierney 
Team of the Year Open Mixed Beach Relay Team 

Spencer Blain-Bartle, Lily 
McMeeken, Ky Morgenthaler, 
Mietta Russell 

Swim Competitor of the Year Kate Brooks 
Board and Ski Competitor of the Year Matthew Graves 
Beach Competitor of the Year Mietta Russell 

Junior Awards 

Jill McKellar Junior of the Year Oscar Hoskins  
Nipper Parent of the Year Steven Northcote 
Nipper Male Athlete of the Year Cameron Austin 
Nipper Female Athlete of the Year Bridie Hipwell 
Nipper Competitor Award Rose Jenkins 
Nipper Co-ordinator Award Jessica Richardson 
Water Safety Awards Darius Alekna 

Zarabelle Coles 
Tamara Heffernan 
Dylan Hershan 
Catherine McCraith 
Kate Upton-Jones 
Rose Upton-Jones 
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Lifesaving Awards 

Attained in Season 2017/2018 

10 Year National Patrol 
Service Award 
Zachary Richter 

5 Year National Patrol 
Service Award 
Travis Cargill 
Rhys Cole 
Joshua Doherty 
Matthew Graves 
Adam Lipszyc 
Romy Lipszyc 
Liam McDonald 
Andrew Nott 

Advanced Resuscitation 
Techniques [AID] 
James Paton 
Ella Swaney 

Assessor Gold Medallion 
(Advanced Lifesaving) 
Darren McLeod 

Bronze Medallion 
Sam Ball 
Ingrid Barnes 
Rupert Bede 
Emile Bird de la Coeur 
Spencer Blain-Bartle 
Edward Clark 
Lachlan Clasby 
Luke Clifford 
Darren Cockerell 
Sam Collingwood 
Emily Condon 
Billie Cunningham-Bruce 
Emily Davey 
Jesse Doherty 
Kipling Edmonds 
Lily Enders 
Benjamin Erez 
Georgia Fraser-Smith 
Amelia Geiss 
Isabella Gluskie 
Christine Gregory 
Brigitte Hafner 
Merryn Harris 
Josh Hastie 
Kasper Hellmann 
Tyson Hess 
Darby Hipwell 
Nicholas Hocking 
Hugh Hosking 
Rachel Hosking 
Charlotte Hoskins 
Samuel Johnstone 

Eliza Laity 
Thomas Lempriere 
Jonathan Lew 
Alexandra Macaulay 
Lachlan Macpherson Smith 
Jack McCorkell 
Angus Melbourne 
Emma Metcalf 
Abbi Moloney 
Scott Murray 
James Neville-Smith 
Max Potter 
Anton Pound 
Olivia Pound 
Jacob Richardson 
Mietta Russell 
Lily Snooks 
Harry Sullivan 
Edward Swaney 
Lachie Templeton 
Liam Thornton 
Charlotte Twentyman 
Annabel Whiter 

Certificate III in Public Safety 
(Aquatic Search and Rescue) 
Nicholas Ford 

Certificate IV in Training and 
Assessment 
Matthew Bunting-Frame 

First Aid [AID] 
Andrew Nott 
Marco Kelsall 
James Paton 
Ella Swaney 

Gold Medallion (Advanced 
Lifesaving) 
James Paton 

IRB Crew Certificate 
Finley Edmonds 
Kipling Edmonds 
Ben Hoskins 
Toby Johnston 
William Johnston 
Thomas Steele 
Benjamin Tobias-Hoyle 

Junior Activities Age 
Manager - Online Theory 
Darius Alekna 
Nicholas Clarke 

Rescue Water Craft Operator 
Certificate 
Rhys Cole 
Samuel Richardson 

Resuscitation [AID] 
Elizabeth Arnott 

Silver Medallion Beach 
Management 
Charli Cassell-Ashton 
Georgia Cassell-Ashton 
Romy Lipszyc 
James Paton 
Bodhi Woods 
Nicholas Woods 

Silver Medallion IRB Driver 
Bridget Barnes 
Zali Cargill 
Jack Cester 
Alasdair McKenzie 
Matthew Morton 
James Paton 
Samuel Richardson 
Sam Warner 
Hamish Wynn-Pope 

Spinal Management 
Bridget Barnes 
Ingrid Barnes 
Travis Cargill 
Zali Cargill 
Emily Davey 
Ellie Doherty 
Amelia Geiss 
Ben Hoskins 
Patrick Hough 
Toby Johnston 
William Johnston 
Ella Laussen 
Alexandra Macaulay 
Alasdair McKenzie 
Ky Morgenthaler 
Matthew Morton 
James Paton 
Kaitlin Russell 
Benjamin Tobias-Hoyle 
Edward Warner 
Sam Warner 
Bodhi Woods 
Nicholas Woods 
Hamish Wynn-Pope 
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SS - ASC Community 
Coaching General Principles 
Nathan Cester 
Donna Lionnet 

SS - Core Official 
Donna Lionnet 

SS - Core Official Online 
Theory Modules  
Donna Lionnet 

SS - Development Coach IRB 
Nathan Cester 

Surf Rescue Certificate (CPR 
Endorsed) 
Jack Allan 
Anshan Arnott-Tan 
Cameron Austin 

Ben Ball 
Jack Ball 
Jessica Bloom 
Kerem Calisir 
Andrew Callaghan 
Freddie Campbell 
Lucy Campbell 
Heidi Collingwood 
Kelvin Crossan 
Tom Davey 
Charlie Enders 
Sam Guthrie 
Amber Hamersfeld 
Chloe Hamersfeld 
Dylan Hershan 
Bridie Hipwell 
Oscar Hoskins 
Jack Hurley 
Rose Jenkins 
Amelia Kogler 

Mikayla Kyriacou 
Freddie Langdon 
Nicholas Lew 
Charlotte Lillywhite 
Euan McKenzie 
Skye McLeish 
Lucinda Morrissy 
James Morton 
Chloe Nikakis 
Lucia Puleio 
Ben Reynolds 
Jessica Richardson 
Jasper Romari 
Ellen Ryan 
Will Sayer 
Tulle Scoffern 
Liam Whitehouse 
Cooper Williams 
Jayden Wilson 
Pippa Woods 

Nipper Club Champions 

Under 7 
Orange 

1St – Thomas Hunt and Billy Price 
2nd – Laila Spatt 
3rd – Fergus Locke 
Age Manager’s Award – Harry 
Mackinnon 

Under 7 Blue 1st – Jack de Fazio 
2nd – Oscar Laity 
3rd – Tia Cliff 
Age Manager’s Award – Isla Kanaan 

Under 8 Boys 1st – Mitchell McGuirk 
2nd – Freddie Tomlinson 
3rd – Xavier Wilson 
Age Manager’s Award – Donavan 
Cockerell 

Under 8 Girls 1st – Misty Scoffern 
2nd – Milla Clark 
3rd – Chloe Poore 

Under 9 Boys 1st – Max Alekna 
2nd – Austin Locke 
3rd – Wilbur Waters 
Age Manager’s Award – Angus Boyd- 
Bell 

Under 9 Girls 1st – Claudia Kogler 
2nd – Emilia Samson-Piniata 
3rd – Sophia Wilkinson 
Age Manager’s Award - Cleo Laughton 

Under 10 Girls 1st – Anouk Clarke 
2nd – Nina Pound 
3rd – Eve Price 
Age Manager’s Award – Grace Lillywhite 

Under 10 Boys 1st – Liam McGuirk 
2nd – Nicholas Callaghan 
3rd – Orlando Clark 
Age Manager’s Award – Nicholas Dunlop 

Under 11 Girls 1st – Harriet Kogler 
2nd – Lily Douglas 
3rd – Lucia Turnbull 
Age Manager’s Award – Lucy Hunt 

Under 11 Boys 1st – Fred Handley 
2nd – Joe Collingwood 
3rd – Alexander Northcote 
Age Manager’s Award – Charlie Appleton 

Under 12 Girls 1st – Anouk Bennett 
2nd – Amelia Morton 
3rd – Sienna Dawes 
Age Manager’s Award - Ruby Hyatt 

Under 12 Boys 1st – Henry Laussen 
2nd – Matthew Callaghan 
3rd – Parker Williams 
Age Manager’s Award - James Talbot 

Under 13 Girls 1st – Skye Scoffern 
2nd – Hannah Lionnet 
3rd – Giselle Northcote 
Age Manager’s Award - Ruby Watson 

Under 13 Boys 1st – Fox Handley 
2nd – Corey Lionett 
3rd – Joey Bertalli 
Age Manager’s Award - Campbell 
Findlay 

Under 14 Girls 1st – Rose Jenkins 
2nd – Amelia Kogler 
3rd – Bridie Hipwell and Charlotte Lillywhite 
Age Manager’s Award - Lucy Morrissey 

Under 14 Boys 1st – Nicholas Lew and Cameron Austin 
2nd – James Morton 
3rd – Euan McKenzie 
Age Manager’s Award - Andrew 
Callaghan 
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Victorian Surf Life Saving Championships 

Opens Championships Results 
Spencer 
Blain-Bartle 

Gold Open Mixed Beach Relay 

Rhys Cole Gold Open Men’s Surf Board 
Rescue 

Jesse Doherty Silver U17 Men’s Champion 
Lifesaver 

Josh Doherty Gold Open Men’s Surf Board 
Rescue 
Gold U19 Men’s Champion 
Lifesaver 
Gold U19 Men’s Surf Board 
Rescue 
Silver Open Men’s Champion 
Lifesaver 
Silver Open Men’s Rescue Tube 
Rescue 
Bronze U19 Men’s Single Ski 
Relay 

Nicholas Ford Gold U19 Men’s Double Ski 
Gold U19 Men’s Surf Board 
Rescue 
Silver U19 Men’s Champion 
Lifesaver 
Silver U19 Men’s Single Ski 
Silver Open Men’s Rescue Tube 
Rescue 
Bronze Open Men’s Champion 
Lifesaver 
Bronze U19 Men’s Single Ski 
Relay 

Myles Irwin Gold U19 Men’s Double Ski 
Silver Open Men’s Rescue Tube 
Rescue 
Silver U19 Men’s Rescue Tube 
Rescue 
Bronze U19 Men’s Champion 
Lifesaver 
Bronze U19 Men’s Single Ski 
Relay 

Thomas 
McFarlane 

Gold Open Men’s Beach Run 
(2km) 

Ky 
Morgenthaler 

Gold Open Mixed Beach Relay 

Samuel 
Richardson 

Silver U19 Men’s Rescue Tube 
Rescue 

Haydn Tierney Bronze Over 24 Male Surf Race 

Isabella Austin Gold U17 Women’s Single Ski 
Silver U17 Women’s Surf Board 
Silver Open Women’s Beach 
Relay 
Silver Open Women’s Single Ski 
Silver Open Women's Surf Board 
Relay 

Silver U19 Women’s Surf Board 
Relay 
Gold U19 Women’s Single Ski 
Relay 
Bronze U17 Women’s Ironwoman 
Bronze Open Women’s Double 
Ski 
Bronze Open Women’s Taplin 
Relay 
Bronze U17 Women’s Champion 
Lifesaver 

Kate Brooks Gold Open Women’s Belt Race 
Bronze Open Women’s Surf 
Race 
Bronze Open Women’s Taplin 
Relay 

Zali Cargill Silver U19 Women’s Surf Board 
Relay 

Isabella Ford Silver Open Women’s Single Ski 
Bronze Open Women’s Double 
Ski 
Bronze Open Women’s Taplin 
Relay 
Bronze Open Women’s 
Champion Lifesaver 

Lily McMeeken Gold Open Mixed Beach Relay 
Gold U19 Women’s Beach Relay 

Caitlin 
Robinson 

Gold U19 Women’s Single Ski 
Relay 
Gold U19 Women’s Beach Relay 
Silver Open Women’s Beach 
Relay 
Silver U19 Women’s Belt Race 
Silver U19 Women’s Surf Board 
Relay 

Greta Ross Gold U19 Women’s Beach Relay 
Gold U19 Women’s Single Ski 
Relay 
Silver Open Women’s Beach 
Relay 

Mietta Russell Gold Open Women’s Beach 
Sprint 
Gold Open Mixed Beach Relay 
Gold U19 Women’s Beach Relay 
Gold U17 Women’s Beach Flags 
Gold U17 Women’s Beach Sprint 
Silver Open Women’s Beach 
Relay 
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Masters Championships Results 
Mark Aliotti Gold 50-59 Men’s Beach Flags 

Gold 50-59 Men’s Beach Sprint 
Gold 230+ Men’s Beach Relay 
Silver 170+ Men’s Surf Teams 
Bronze 50-59 Men’s Beach Run 
(2km) 

Darius Alekna Silver 40-49 Men’s Surf Board 
Rescue 

Frank Christian Gold 60-64 Men’s Surf Race 
Gold 60-64 Men’s Rescue Tube 
Race 
Gold 50-54 Men’s Surf Board 
Rescue 
Gold 170+ Men’s Surf Teams 
Gold 230+ Men’s Beach Relay 
Silver 60-64 Men’s Surf Board 
Bronze 130+ Men’s Board 
Relay 

Nick Clarke Gold 110+ Men’s Taplin Relay 
Silver 40-45 Ironman 
Silver 45-49 Men’s Surf Board 
Rescue 
Silver 45-49 Men’s Surf Board 
Silver 170+ Men’s Surf Teams 
Bronze 130+ Men’s Board 
Relay 

Paul Doherty Silver 110+ Men’s Surf Teams 
Silver 40-49 Men’s Surf Board 
Rescue 
Bronze 45-49 Men’s Rescue 
Tube Race 

Jon Ford Gold 50-54 Ironman 
Gold 50-54 Men’s Surf Board 
Rescue 
Gold 170+ Men’s Board Relay 

Andrew Gibson Gold 65-69 Men’s Beach Sprint 
Gold 65-69 Men’s Rescue Tube 
Race 
Gold 65-69 Men’s Surf Race 
Gold 65-69 Men’s Surf Board 
Gold 65-69 Ironman 
Gold 230+ Men’s Beach Relay 
Gold 170+ Men’s Board Relay 
Silver 170+ Men’s Surf Teams 
Silver 65-69 Men’s Single Ski 

Ian Knight Gold 50-59 Men’s Surf Race 
Gold 170+ Men’s Surf Teams 

David (Jack) 
Russell 

Gold 170+ Men’s Board Relay 
Gold 230+ Men’s Beach Relay 
Gold 170+ Men’s Surf Teams 
Silver 50-54 Men’s Rescue 
Tube Race 
Silver 45-49 Men’s Surf Board 
Rescue 

Hayden Rydberg Gold 30-34 Men’s Rescue Tube 
Race 
Gold 30-34 Men’s Single Ski 
Gold 30-34 Men’s Surf Board 
Gold 30-34 Men’s Surf Board 
Rescue 
Gold 30-34 Men’s Surf Race 
Gold 30-34 Ironman 
Gold 30-34 Men’s Double Ski 
Gold 110+ Men’s Taplin Relay 
Silver 30-34 Men’s Beach Run 
2km 
Silver 110+ Men’s Surf Teams 

Haydn Tierney Gold 35-39 Men’s Surf Race 
Gold 35-39 Ironman 
Gold 30-34 Men’s Surf Board 
Rescue 
Gold 30-34 Men’s Double Ski 
Gold 110+ Men’s Taplin Relay 
Silver 110+ Men’s Surf Teams 
Bronze 35-39 Men’s Rescue 
Tube Race 
Bronze 130+ Men’s Board 
Relay 

Nicola Alekna Gold 50-54 Women’s Surf 
Board Rescue 
Gold 150+ Women’s Surf 
Teams 
Silver 50-54 Women’s Beach 
Sprint 
Silver 50-54 Women’s Beach 
Flags 

Wendy Davey Gold 45-49 Women’s Surf 
Board Rescue 

Michelle Ford Gold 45-49 Women’s Surf 
Board Rescue 
Gold 150+ Women’s Surf 
Teams 
Silver 150+ Women’s Surf 
Board Relay 

Karen Golding Silver 150+ Women’s Surf 
Board Relay 

Jane Starr Gold 50-54 Women’s Surf 
Board Rescue 
Gold 50-54 Women’s Surf Race 
Gold 150+ Women’s Surf 
Teams 
Silver 150+ Women’s Surf 
Board Relay 
Silver 50-54 Women’s Beach 
Run (2km) 
Bronze 50-54 Women’s Beach 
Flags 
Silver 50-54 Women’s Rescue 
Tube Race 
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Pool Lifesaving Championships 

State Championships (September 2017) 
Caitlin Robinson Bronze 200m U17 Obstacle Race 

Silver 100M SC U17 Manikin Carry with Fins 
Bronze 200m U17 Super Lifesaver 
Gold 50m U17 Manikin Carry 
Bronze 100m U17 Rescue Medley 

RLSSA Australian Pool Lifesaving Championships (January 2018) 
Caitlin Robinson Bronze U19 CPR 

Australian Surf Life Saving Championships 

Masters Championships Results 
Frank Christian Bronze 60-64 Surf Race 

Haydn Tierney Bronze 30-39 2km Ocean Swim 
Bronze 35-39 Surf Race 
Bronze 35-39 Ironman 

State Representative Team 

Isabella Austin (Beach) 

Joshua Doherty (Beach) 

Caitlin Robinson (Pool) 

Lachlan Robinson (Beach) 

Point Leo Swim Classic Results 

Male Female 
4KM RUN 
8-11 William Mooney Nichola Muser 
12-15 Edward Clark Charlotte Hoskins 
16-18 Hamish Wynn-Pope Rebecca Henderson 
19+ Tom McFarlane Danielle Jansse 

2.5KM SWIM 
1 Sam Sheppard Rebecca Henderson 
2 Matt Gilling Lauren McAuley 
3 Robbe Dilissen Kate Brooks 

1.2KM SWIM CLASSIC 
12-15 Jackson Lazzar Kimberley Gilling 
16-18 Robbe Dilissen Rebecca Henderson 
19-29 Sam Sheppard Kiera Bates 
30-39 Nathan Chenco Wendy Tempels 
40-49 Nigel Fanning Bizzy Butterworth 
50-59 Damian Bennett Melinda Kemp 
60-69 Frank Christian Sue Boekel 
70+ Bruce Allender Rhonda McCartin 
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Darius Alekna 17.25 38 55.25 35.75 
Nicola Alekna 15.75 28 43.75 22.75 
Kim Aliotti 15 0 15 7 
Marc Aliotti 20 0 20 7 
Jack Allan 14 21 35 23 
Abby Allsopp 0 0 0 0 
Bryce Appleton 13 25.5 38.5 29 
Anshan Arnott-Tan 0 7.33 7.33 3.33 
Anwyn Arnott-Tan 0 0 0 0 
Cameron Austin 25 15 40 28 
Isabella Austin 32 16 48 27 
Will Baillieu 6 6.5 12.5 7 
Ben Ball 0 4 4 4 
Jack Ball 0 4 4 4 
Kevin Ball 22.5 2.5 25 9.5 
Sam Ball 22.5 13 35.5 19 
Lauren Banks 0 0 0 0 
Bridget Barnes 37.5 8 45.5 24.5 
Ingrid Barnes 7.75 12 19.75 11.75 
Rupert Bede 0 16 16 12 
Simone Bell 2 0 2 0 
Sacha Bennett 3.5 0 3.5 0 
Charlie Bessell 7 0 7 7 
Samuel Bessell 0 0 0 0 
Emile Bird de la Coeur 14.5 0 14.5 14.5 
Sean Blackley 0 0 0 0 
Spencer Blain-Bartle 15.5 4 19.5 0 
Matthew Blair 17 0 17 13 
Jessica Bloom 6 8 14 0 
Tamara-Leigh Brawn 7 0 7 7 
Lachlan Brockhurst 17 13 30 18 
Tom Brockhurst 11.75 11.25 23 10.75 
Anthony Brooks 4 0 4 0 
Kate Brooks 19 18 37 18 
Thomas Brooks 4 0 4 0 
Kerem Calisir 0 0 0 0 
Andrew Callaghan 11 16 27 21 
Freddie Campbell 0 1 1 0 
Lucy Campbell 7 1 8 7 
Travis Cargill 37.5 0 37.5 11 
Zali Cargill 45 11.5 56.5 25.5 
Zane Cargill 11 0 11 4 
Emily Carr 0 0 0 0 
Vanessa Carr 12.75 19.5 32.25 24.25 
Elisa Carson 7 0 7 7 
Charli Cassell-Ashton 34.5 4 38.5 19 
Georgia Cassell-Ashton 35 10 45 29 
Jack Cester 0 0 0 0 
Nathan Cester 3 0 3 0 
Frank Christian 8 0 8 0 
Andrew Clark 3 6 9 2 
Edward Clark 3 0 3 0 
Emily Clark 0 0 0 0 
Madison Clark 0 17.5 17.5 14.25 
Stephanie Clark 12 20 32 19 
Nathaniel Clarke 32 15 47 31.5 
Nicholas Clarke 15.5 12 27.5 12 
Luke Clifford 10 5.25 15.25 9 
Darren Cockerell 12 18 30 17 
Rhys Cole 32 0 32 23.5 
Zarabelle Coles 22 32 54 37 
Heidi Collingwood 11 18 29 21.5 
Sam Collingwood 7.5 4 11.5 4 
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Emily Condon 0 4 4 4 
Hugh Condon 10.5 0 10.5 8 
Kelvin Crossan 20.5 0 20.5 11 
Angela Dally 6 0 6 0 
Emily Davey 15.75 12.25 28 23.75 
Tom Davey 5 6 11 11 
Wendy Davey 3 6.5 9.5 3 
Harry Davies 17 8 25 16 
Kate Dawes 0 15 15 8 
Ellie Doherty 40 19 59 29.5 
Jesse Doherty 21.5 6 27.5 21 
Joshua Doherty 29 0 29 24.5 
Paul Doherty 34.25 0 34.25 19 
Frederique Donnelly 0 0 0 0 
Jean-Baptiste Donnelly 0 0 0 0 
Laura Ebeyer 0 10 10 6 
Finley Edmonds 36.08 4.5 40.58 29.83 
Kipling Edmonds 33.83 5.75 39.58 29.83 
Charlie Enders 5.5 9 14.5 6 
Lily Enders 10.5 13.25 23.75 14.5 
Benjamin Erez 9 13 22 9 
Edward Findlay 5.25 6 11.25 6 
Harvey Ford 3 6.5 9.5 2.5 
Isabella Ford 19 0 19 11 
Jon Ford 16 8 24 13 
Michele Ford 25 0 25 14 
Nicholas Ford 21.25 2 23.25 15.25 
Adam Francis 5 0 5 0 
India Francis 0 0 0 0 
Sebastian Francis 0 0 0 0 
Georgia Fraser-Smith 11.5 17.75 29.25 20.5 
John Gallagher 21 24.5 45.5 31.5 
Michaela Gallagher 6.5 2 8.5 8.5 
Jack Garner 38 0 38 23 
Amelia Geiss 14.75 12 26.75 20.75 
Andrew Gibson 41.5 6.5 48 31 
Isabella Gluskie 16 0 16 10 
Karen Golding 11.75 13 24.75 14.5 
Matthew Graves 23 0 23 23 
Caleb Gray 16 0 16 9 
Will Gregory 2.5 0 2.5 0 
Charlie Guthrie 0 0 0 0 
Sam Guthrie 2 0 2 0 
Amber Hamersfeld 0 14 14 10 
Chloe Hamersfeld 0 16 16 8 
Grace Handley 10.5 15.92 26.42 11.17 
Augustus Hebblewhite 0 4 4 4 
Tamara Heffernan 0 40 40 26 
Kasper Hellmann 5 20 25 12 
Dylan Hershan 14.5 31 45.5 30.5 
Bridie Hipwell 25 15.5 40.5 27.5 
Connor Hipwell 2 2 4 4 
Darby Hipwell 7.5 11.25 18.75 9.5 
Greg Hipwell 0 5.5 5.5 3 
Nicholas Hocking 8 0 8 0 
Vicki Hood 4.5 0 4.5 0 
Hugh Hosking 23.5 14.25 37.75 34 
Rachel Hosking 30.5 12.75 43.25 37 
Ben Hoskins 37.5 27 64.5 43 
Charlotte Hoskins 36 27 63 43 
Oscar Hoskins 27 20 47 33 
Richard Hoskins 7 12 19 4 
Patrick Hough 46 0 46 29 
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Kate Howell 0 0 0 0 
Adam Howgate 16.5 0 16.5 0 
Jack Hurley 0 16 16 14 
Myles Irwin 32 0 32 20 
Elizabeth Jenkins 12.5 20 32.5 16 
Rose Jenkins 17 20 37 23 
Toby Johnston 20 4.5 24.5 15.5 
William Johnston 14 2 16 8 
Samuel Johnstone 1.5 0 1.5 0 
Annabelle Jones 2 6 8 0 
Morgan Jones 41.5 9.25 50.75 37.5 
Jack Karayan 0 0 0 0 
Scotlan King 7.75 6.5 14.25 9 
Susan King 13.25 0 13.25 13.25 
Dylan Knight 11.5 0 11.5 5 
Amelia Kogler 13.5 18 31.5 19 
Liana Kyriacou 0 0 0 0 
Mikayla Kyriacou 0 10 10 10 
Oscar Kyriacou 0 0 0 0 
Eliza Laity 2 13 15 5 
Jessica Laity 2 2 4 0 
Freddie Langdon 8.75 18 26.75 20.75 
Ella Laussen 8.5 12 20.5 13 
William Laussen 10 24 34 26 
Max Lempriere 4 5 9 4 
Thomas Lempriere 8 13 21 10 
Abby Lethlean 19 0 19 0 
Stacey Lethlean 7 0 7 7 
Jonathan Lew 15 28.5 43.5 35 
Nicholas Lew 0 12 12 6 
Charlotte Lillywhite 17.75 16 33.75 23.5 
Adam Lipszyc 53.5 16.25 69.75 37.5 
Romy Lipszyc 35.5 14.25 49.75 21.5 
Lachlan Lloyd 8 0 8 0 
Sarah Low 11 0 11 11 
Alexandra Macaulay 4 22 26 18 
Georgia Macpherson 
Smith 

0 0 0 0 

Lachlan Macpherson 
Smith 

0 2 2 2 

Malcolm Marcus 21.75 0 21.75 12.25 
Hinetera Marino 12 0 12 12 
Jack McCorkell 9.5 2 11.5 2 
Jade McCormick 0 0 0 0 
Catherine McCraith 12.5 36 48.5 34.5 
Benjamin McDonald 0 0 0 0 
Clayton McDonald 21 3.5 24.5 21.5 
Liam McDonald 3 0 3 0 
Thomas McFarlane 13.5 0 13.5 4 
Brett McGuirk 0 2 2 2 
Alasdair McKenzie 28.5 0 28.5 20 
Euan McKenzie 17.75 16 33.75 29.75 
Hamish McKenzie 0 3 3 2 
Skye McLeish 21.5 18 39.5 26 
Chloe Mereszko 0 0 0 0 
Grace Mereszko 0 0 0 0 
Simon Merrigan 0 8 8 4 
Emma Metcalf 21.5 10 31.5 19 
Harry Mezger 7 0 7 7 
Thomas Mollenkopf 5 0 5 0 
Abbi Moloney 5 0 5 0 
Brittany Morgenthaler 35.5 14.25 49.75 27.5 
Ky Morgenthaler 24 2 26 16 
Kym Morrissy 11 2 13 2 
Lucinda Morrissy 13.5 14 27.5 21.5 
James Morton 20 16 36 31 
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Matthew Morton 12 0 12 5 
Bruce Mourney 13 4 17 13 
Max Mourney 7 0 7 7 
Ronald Murray 4 0 4 4 
Lily Neal 7 0 7 7 
Chloe Nikakis 14.75 18.25 33 22.75 
Steven Northcote 31 22 53 34 
Andrew Nott 66.5 26.25 92.75 53.5 
Felix Noxon 0 0 0 0 
Stella Noxon 5 20 25 18 
Connor Ogilvie 6.5 2 8.5 6 
Andrew O'Hara 31.5 0 31.5 18.5 
Emilie Page 0 0 0 0 
Niamh Page 7.75 13.75 21.5 17.5 
Patrick Page 5 5 10 2 
James Paton 52 0 52 29 
Lachlan Pearse 12.5 0 12.5 3.5 
Jack Potter 0 0 0 0 
Max Potter 12 1.5 13.5 5 
Zoe Potter 0 0 0 0 
Anton Pound 18.5 16 34.5 25.5 
Antonio Puleio 0 2 2 2 
Francesca Puleio 7 3 10 6 
Lucia Puleio 10.25 12.75 23 14.75 
Max Rechner Thomas 19.92 3.5 23.42 15.92 
Rory Redlich 2 22 24 16 
Hailey Reid 14 0 14 7 
Ben Reynolds 6 10 16 10 
Jacob Richardson 0 0 0 0 
Jessica Richardson 21.25 14 35.25 25.75 
Nicholas Richardson 43 27.5 70.5 49.5 
Samuel Richardson 38.5 0 38.5 23.5 
Zachary Richter 7 0 7 7 
Bridget Roberts 7 0 7 7 
Caitlin Robinson 8.17 11.5 19.67 11.17 
Lachlan Robinson 19.67 2.25 21.92 9.92 
Jason Romari 18 0 18 3.5 
Jasper Romari 26.5 18 44.5 32.5 
Amelia Ross 13.5 0 13.5 13.5 
Greta Ross 8.5 0 8.5 8.5 
Hudson Ross 7 0 7 7 
Paige Ross 7 0 7 7 
Michelle Royal-
Hebblewhite 

24 0 24 15 

Joanne Rush 15.5 0 15.5 0 
David Russell 0 2 2 2 
Jemima Russell 4 0 4 4 
Kaitlin Russell 17.5 10.5 28 12.5 
Mietta Russell 5 16 21 21 
Hayden Rydberg 12 0 12 4 
Dana Sawyer 13 4 17 13 
Will Sayer 0 1.75 1.75 0 
Damon Scoffern 6 26.5 32.5 20.5 
Tulle Scoffern 4 10 14 8 
Lucy Searle 7 26 33 21 
Charlie Solomon 0 0 0 0 
Heidi Starr 0 0 0 0 
Jane Starr 21 0 21 14 
Raymond (Geoff) Steele 10 0 10 7 
Thomas Steele 22 2 24 14 
Harry Sullivan 15.5 4 19.5 14.5 
Dianne Summers 16 8 24 11 
Eloise Sutherland 0 0 0 0 
Edward Swaney 25.5 10.25 35.75 22 
Ella Swaney 44.5 2 46.5 29.5 
Lachlan Swaney 12 8 20 13 
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Gabriella Tabain 27.75 16 43.75 24 
Lachie Templeton 9.5 2 11.5 7 
Anthony Thomas 14.92 0 14.92 8.92 
Liam Thornton 25.5 16 41.5 24 
Haydn Tierney 5 0 5 0 
Benjamin Tobias-Hoyle 5 2.5 7.5 7.5 
Luke Treadwell 31.5 0 31.5 14.5 
Michael Treadwell 42.5 0 42.5 25.5 
Jody Tulloch 10 0 10 0 
Charlotte Twentyman 21.5 0 21.5 17.5 
Kate Upton Jones 18 31 49 36 
Rose Upton Jones 18 31 49 36 
Emily Walsh 0 0 0 0 
Nick Ward-Ambler 7 0 7 7 
Bella Warner 3.5 26.25 29.75 18 
Edward Warner 50.5 4 54.5 42.5 
Sam Warner 35.5 5 40.5 27.5 
Brett Waters 0 18 18 12 
Andrew Welsh 19 0 19 14 
Callum Welsh 0 0 0 0 
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Lucy Welsh 0 0 0 0 
Sophie Welsh 24 0 24 24 
Eleanor Wetenhall 8 0 8 8 
Liam Whitehouse 11 9.75 20.75 17 
Annabel Whiter 2.5 0 2.5 0 
Sarah Whiter 16.5 0 16.5 7 
Danielle Wilkins 27 0 27 18 
Evie Wilkins 8.5 0 8.5 4 
April Williams 0 0 0 0 
Cooper Williams 18 13.5 31.5 27.5 
Riley Williams 4 13.5 17.5 8.5 
Darcy Wilmott 0 0 0 0 
Jayden Wilson 6.5 18 24.5 18.5 
Matilda Wolton 0 0 0 0 
Bodhi Woods 11 10 21 8 
Marley Woods 24.5 10.5 35 22 
Nicholas Woods 50 22 72 42.5 
Pippa Woods 7 30 37 18 
Hamish Wynn-Pope 24 13 37 14 

Management Committee (Meeting Attendance) 

Position Name Attnd. 

President Simon Merrigan 10 
Secretary/OHS Andrew Gibson 5 
Treasurer/Registrar Kim Williams 11 
Captain Adam Lipszyc 9 
Vice Captain Andrew Nott 4 
Radio Officer Richard Ellis 2 
IRB Captain Nicholas Woods 7 
Team Manager Iris Cassell 9 
JAB Coordinator Richard Hoskins 0 
Gear Steward Andrew Welsh 6 
Swim Captain Samuel Richardson 2 
Board & Ski 
Captain 

Jon Ford 3 

First Aid Officer Morgan Jones 0 
Cadet Coordinator Sophie Welsh 2 
Committee Judy Leahy 4 
Committee Romy Lipszyc 6 
Chief Instructor Brittany 

Morgenthaler 
3 

Position Name Attnd. 

Senior Vice 
President 

Tamara Brawn 5 

Vice President Blane Paton 8 
Vice President Andrew Barnes 8 
Vice President Mick Treadwell 10 
Vice President Brooke Mollenkopf 6 
Vice President Tara Doherty 4 
Vice President Luke Treadwell 9 
Vice President Max Jeffrey 6 
Vice President John Gallagher 9 
Vice President Julia 

O’Shaughnessy 
3 

Beach Captain 
Boat Captain 

Social Secretary 

Mine Editor 
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List of members 

Life Member (*Deceased) 
Andrew Barnes 
Richard Batchelor 
Tamara-Leigh Brawn 
Alastair Buxton* 
Murray Cahill 
Michael Caraher 
Richard Ellis(SNR) 
Geoffrey Ewert 
Peter Ford 
Alan Forster* 
John Forsyth 
Alister Forsyth* 
Andrew Gibson 
Peter Gibson 
Brian Horwood 
John Horwood 
Geoffrey James 
Maxwell Jeffrey 

Edward Kidd 
Geoff Kinsey* 
Ian Knight 
Clayton McDonald 
Garry McKellar 
Jill McKellar* 
Ron McKillop* 
Thomas Mollenkopf 
Stephen Morgenthaler 
Simone Munro 
Ronald Murray 
Garry Randall 
Randall Raper* 
Geoff Raws* 
Donald Roberts 
Garry Rydberg 
Peter Taylor* 
Gary Tierney* 
Graham Tierney* 
Alfred Treadwell 
Geoffrey Waters* 
Peter Whillans 
John Williams* 
Kim Williams 
Robert Woodhouse 
Active (15-18 yrs) 
Abby Allsopp 
Bridget Barnes 
Sacha Bennett 
Charlie Bessell 
Sean Blackley 
Andrew Brockhurst 
Zali Cargill 
Emily Carr 
Charli Cassell-Ashton 
Georgia Cassell-Ashton 
Jack Cester 
Lachlan Clasby 
Ellie Doherty 
Joshua Doherty 
Frederique Donnelly 
Laura Ebeyer 
Finley Edmonds 
Nicholas Ford 
Nicholas Frampton 
Sebastian Francis 
Michaela Gallagher 
Will Gregory 
Charlie Guthrie 
Josh Hastie 
Tyson Hess 
Connor Hipwell 
Thomas Hird 
Rachel Hosking 
Kate Howell 

Myles Irwin 
Elizabeth Jenkins 
Toby Johnston 
William Johnston 
Charlotte Jones 
Dylan Knight 
Oscar Kyriacou 
Jessica Laity 
Ella Laussen 
Max Lempriere 
Georgia Macpherson 
Smith 
Jack McCorkell 
Jade McCormick 
Benjamin McDonald 
Alasdair McKenzie 
Grace Mereszko 
Harry Mezger 
Ebony Mitchell 

Ky Morgenthaler 
Matthew Morton 
Max Mourney 
Lily Neal 
Andrew Nott 
Felix Noxon 
James Paton 
Jack Potter 
Olivia Pound 
Hailey Reid 
Samuel Richardson 
Bridget Roberts 
Caitlin Robinson 
Amelia Ross 
Greta Ross 
Hudson Ross 
Paige Ross 
Lauren Sbisa 
Samantha Smith 
Lily Snooks 
Charlie Solomon 
Thomas Steele 
Eloise Sutherland 
Thomas Sutherland 
Lachlan Swaney 
Gabriella Tabain 
Lachie Templeton 
Benjamin Tobias-Hoyle 
Emily Walsh 
Nick Ward-Ambler 
Sam Warner 
Callum Welsh 
Sarah Whiter 
Bodhi Woods 
Hamish Wynn-Pope 
Active Senior (18yrs & 
over) 
Darius Alekna 
Nicola Alekna 
Kim Aliotti 
Marc Aliotti 
Jemma Allsopp 
Bryce Appleton 
Anwyn Arnott-Tan 
David Austin 
Kevin Ball 
Samuel Bessell 
Matthew Blair 
Frank Braun 
Tom Brockhurst 
Anthony Brooks 
Kate Brooks 
Thomas Brooks 
Mitchell Brown 
Travis Cargill 

Zane Cargill 
Robyn Carr 
Tony Carr 
Elisa Carson 
Kate Cassell-Ashton 
Nathan Cester 
Andrew Clark 
Emily Clark 
Kylie Clark 
Nicholas Clarke 
Darren Cockerell 
Rhys Cole 
Angela Dally 
Wendy Davey 
Kate Dawes 
Jack Dewhurst 
Paul Doherty 
Tara Doherty 
Campbell Edmonds 

David Feehan 
Nicole Fitzpatrick 
Andrew Ford 
Isabella Ford 
Jon Ford 
Michele Ford 
Jeffrey Fortuyn 
Adam Francis 
John Gallagher 
Jack Garner 
David Gearing 
Peter Gearing 
Sarah Gearing 
Karen Golding 
Matthew Graves 
Caleb Gray 
Augustus Hebblewhite 
Oscar Hebblewhite 
Tamara Heffernan 
Greg Hipwell 
Vicki Hood 
Ben Hoskins 
Richard Hoskins 
Patrick Hough 
Adam Howgate 
Kelly James 
Samuel Johnstone 
Morgan Jones 
Marco Kelsall 
Susan King 
Adam Kyriacou 
Mark Laity 
Stephen Laussen 
Abby Lethlean 
Mark Lethlean 
Stacey Lethlean 
Adam Lipszyc 
Romy Lipszyc 
Lachlan Lloyd 
Sarah Low 
Malcolm Marcus 
Hinetera Marino 
Catherine McCraith 
Liam McDonald 
Thomas McFarlane 
Stephen McGuire 
Brett McGuirk 
Hamish McKenzie 
Matilda McLellan 
Darren McLeod 
Lily McMeeken 
Simon Merrigan 
Max Mezger 
Simon Mezger 
Brittany Morgenthaler 

Kym Morrissy 
Joseph Morton 
Bruce Mourney 
Steven Northcote 
Andrew O'Hara 
Emilie Page 
Patrick Page 
Damon Pascoe 
Blane Paton 
Lachlan Pearse 
Zoe Potter 
Anton Pound 
Trystan Precht 
Antonio Puleio 
Nicholas Richardson 
Zachary Richter 
Lachlan Robinson 
Jason Romari 
Michelle Royal-

Hebblewhite 
Joanne Rush 
Jemima Russell 
Kaitlin Russell 
Dana Sawyer 
Damon Scoffern 
Heidi Starr 
Jane Starr 
Raymond (Geoff) Steele 
Dianne Summers 
Ella Swaney 
Anthony Thomas 
Jody Tulloch 
Edward Warner 
Brett Waters 
Nick Watson 
Andrew Welsh 
Lucy Welsh 
Sophie Welsh 
Danielle Wilkins 
Evie Wilkins 
Angela Williams 
Darcy Wilmott 
Nicholas Woods 
Harrison Young 
James Young 
William Young 

Cadet Member (13-15 
years) 
Jack Allan 
Isabella Austin 
Will Baillieu 
Sam Ball 
Lauren Banks 
Ingrid Barnes 
Rupert Bede 
Emile Bird de la Coeur 
Spencer Blain-Bartle 
Jessica Bloom 
Lachlan Brockhurst 
Kerem Calisir 
Freddie Campbell 
Lucy Campbell 
Vanessa Carr 
Edward Clark 
Madison Clark 
Stephanie Clark 
Nathaniel Clarke 
Alice Clifford 
Luke Clifford 
Zarabelle Coles 
Sam Collingwood 
Emily Condon 
Kelvin Crossan 

Billie Cunningham-Bruce 
Emily Davey 
Harry Davies 
Jesse Doherty 
Jean-Baptiste Donnelly 
Kipling Edmonds 
Lily Enders 
Benjamin Erez 
Edward Findlay 
Harvey Ford 
India Francis 
Georgia Fraser-Smith 
Amelia Geiss 
Isabella Gluskie 
Chloe Hamersfeld 
Grace Handley 
Merryn Harris 
Rahni Harrison 
Kasper Hellmann 

Dylan Hershan 
Darby Hipwell 
Nicholas Hocking 
Hugh Hosking 
Charlotte Hoskins 
Annabelle Jones 
Jack Karayan 
Scotlan King 
Liana Kyriacou 
Rose Laidlaw 
Eliza Laity 
William Laussen 
Thomas Lempriere 
Jonathan Lew 
Alexandra Macaulay 
Lachlan Macpherson 
Smith 
Chloe Mereszko 
Emma Metcalf 
Abbi Moloney 
Stella Noxon 
Connor Ogilvie 
Niamh Page 
Max Potter 
Francesca Puleio 
Max Rechner Thomas 
Rory Redlich 
Jacob Richardson 
Mietta Russell 
Ellen Ryan 
Lucy Searle 
Harry Sullivan 
Edward Swaney 
Liam Thornton 
Charlotte Twentyman 
Kate Upton Jones 
Rose Upton Jones 
Bella Warner 
Harrison Westaway 
Eleanor Wetenhall 
Annabel Whiter 
April Williams 
Riley Williams 
Jayden Wilson 
Matilda Wolton 
Marley Woods 
Pippa Woods 
Brodie Knight 
Reserve Active 
Matthew Bunting-Frame 
Frank Christian 
Hugh Condon 
Hayden Rydberg 
Haydn Tierney 

Long Service 
Simone Bell 
Richard Ellis 
Khali Gooding 
Natalie Johnstone 
Dayna Laurence 
Cameron McGill 
David Russell 
Mark Tierney 
Luke Treadwell 
Michael Treadwell 
Anthony Williams 
Associate 
Aris Allegos 
Samantha Allegos 
Joanna Anderson 
Kelvin Anderson 
Rose Anderson 
Susanne Anderson 

Campbell Andrews 
Chris Arnott 
Wesley Arnott 
Vanessa Ashby 
Warren Ashby 
Jennifer Atkins 
Jane Baillieu 
Sandra Barnes 
Vanessa Bede 
Kate Beever 
Simon Bell 
Marika Benetti-Hille 
Andrew Bennett 
Cameron Bertalli 
Julia Bertalli 
Daniel Bessell 
Alice Blake 
James Blythe 
Miffany Blythe 
Alan Bounds 
Peter Braithwaite 
Mark Brancatisano 
Andre Brewer 
Clydie Brewer 
Eleanor Bridger 
Jonathan Briskin 
Craig Buchanan 
Daina Burgess 
Lisa Button 
Kerry Byron 
Anna Cahill 
Mark Callaghan 
Meahan Callaghan 
Penelope Callaghan 
Carl Callenbach 
Amelia Campbell 
Lisa Cantwell-Cargill 
Peter Carne 
Louisa Carter 
Iris Cassell 
Mark Cester 
Roberta Cester 
Brendan Charleson 
Jemma Charlton 
Dan Charpentier 
Simon Chatfield 
Jeanie Cheong 
Elizabeth Clancy 
Rowan Clark 
Timothy Clark 
Geoffrey Clarke 
Sharyn Clarke 
Warren Clarke 
David Cleven 
Valerie Clifford 
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Kate Cockerell 
Kate Collingwood 
Stewart Collingwood 
Rhys Collins 
Sheila Collins 
Rachel Connor 
Rob Cooper 
Tom Cordiner 
Reagan Croucher 
Simon Crowe 
Catherine Cunningham 
Paul Cunningham 
Mary Curran 
Bernie Curtis 
Melissa D'Amico 
Clyde Davenport 
Deborah Davenport 
Elisabeth Davenport 
Lauren Davenport 
Lucy Davenport 

Rebecca Davey 
Simon Davey 
Danielle Davies 
Michael Davies 
Richard Davies 
Paul Davis 
Kynan Dawes 
Tamie De Fazio 
Luke Delaney 
Georgia Denisenko 
Alexandra Devine 
Roger Devine 
Simon Doak 
Paul Donnelly 
Ben Doughton 
Jody Douglas 
Naomi Douglas 
Kenneth Drake 
Robert Dunlop 
Amber Edmonds 
William Edmonds 
Andrea Ellery 
Andrew Ellery 
Caroline Elliott 
Elise Elliott 
Tom Elliott 
Sukanya Ellison-Whyte 
Grant Enders 
Matthew Enever 
Dror Erez 
Linette Etheredge 
Hugh Falcon 
Peter Findlay 
Suzanne Fitzgerald 
Peter Fletcher 
Paul Flouch 
Fiona Ford 
Fleur Forsyth 
Lucinda Francis 
Duncan Fraser-Smith 
Christopher Fulton 
Katrina Garner 
Peter Garner 
James Gaylard 

Jodi Gaylard 
Julie Gearing 
Alexandra George 
Chantelle Gibbs 
Michael Gibbs 
Sally Gluyas 

Chris Grant 
Catherine Greenwood-
Smith 
Christine Gregory 
Ian Griffith 
David Guthrie 
Brigitte Hafner 
Jessica Hall 
Elizabeth Hall-Johnston 
Brian Hamersfeld 
Natalie Hamersfeld 
Wendy Handley 
Richard Hansen 
Melinda Harrison 
Karen Hawker 
Melissah Heath 
Jodi Heffernan 

Mark Heffernan 
Wolfgang Hellmann 
Amy Hershan 
Dion Hershan 
Annthea Hick 
Janet Hicks 
Paul-Thomas Hicks 
Jane Hider 
Trina Hipwell 
Imogen Hone 
Ross Horwood 
Peter Hoskin 
Gregory Hosking 
Christine Houlihan 
Deborah Howell 
Rob Howell 
Samantha Huddle 
Lisa Huett 
Danielle Hulyer 
Derek Humphery-Smith 

Georgina Hunt 
Samuel Hunt 
Alix Hunter 
Sally Hyatt 
Vladislav Hyatt 
Craig Hynes 
Amanda Irwin 
Warwick Irwin 
John Jenkins 
Mark Johnston 
Tanja Johnston 
Chris Johnstone 
Irene Johnstone 
Mathew Johnstone 
Darren Jolly 
Deanne Jolly 
Elizabeth Jones 
Simon Jones 
Anna Kalff 
Richard Kanaan 
Sarah Kay 
Nathalie Kemp 
Drew King 
Robin King 
Tessa Kitchener 
Tristan Kitchener 
Anthony Klein 
Daniel Kogler 
Thea Kogler 
Grant Konning 
Nicky Konstantinou 
Renee Kostiuk 
Wilga Kottek 
Hamsa Kunaratnam 
Leiza Kyriacou 
Fiona Laidlaw-Wilkins 
Kim Laity 
Kate Lally 
Tim Langdon 
Larissa Langley 
Amanda Larobina 
Marco Larobina 
Prudence Latchford 
Carolyn Laughton 

Simon Laughton 
Fiona Leach 
Judith Leahy 
Arthur Lebeau 
Susan Leeton 
Kristine Lempriere 

Tina Leonard 
Anouche Levy 
Michael Levy 
Evelyn Lew 
Jessica Lightfoot 
David Lillywhite 
Karen Lillywhite 
Jason Lindeman 
Kim Lindeman 
Donna Lionnet 
Andrei Locke 
Jodie Long 
Dee Longwill 
Kevin Lowden 
Tracey Lowden 
Ben Macdonald 
Stewart MacGowan 

Anthony Maher 
Catherine Mair 
Andrew Mansour 
Sally Marks 
Penelope Martyn 
Glenn Maskell 
Sarah-Jo Mason 
Zoe May-Konning 
Stuart McCraith 
Millicent McCutcheon 
Phillip McCutcheon 
Matthew McKinnon 
Kythe McLean 
Lucinda McLean 
Alexandra McManamey 
Brendan McMillan 
Mandi Mcpherson 
Angus Melbourne 
Jennifer Melbourne 
Josephine Melone 

Emily Meredith-Smith 
Jonathon Meredith-Smith 
Joanne Mereszko 
Peter Mereszko 
Sarah Merrigan 
Daniel Metcalf 
Tracey Metcalf 
Ed Meysztowicz 
Anna Mezger 
William Mitchell 
Brooke Mollenkopf 
Damienne Mor 
Vanessa Morgan 
Chris Munro 
Fiona Munro 
Fiona Murdoch 
Scott Murray 
Tarena Murray 
Sarah Naarden 
David Neal 
Patrick Ness 
James Neville-Smith 
Sarah Newnham 
Sarah Nicholls 
Rachel Nickless 
Andrew Nikakis 
Georgie Nikakis 
Hayley Northcote 
Vicki Nott 
Justin Noxon 
Chris O'Connor 
Tim O'Connor 
Sue Oddie 
Brooke Ogilvie 
Nicholas Ogilvie 
Chris Oldham 
Sophie O'Neil 
Julia O'Shaughnessy 
Eddie Perfect 
Ben Perry 
Felicity Perry 
Jane Perton 
Simon Pitt 
Kit Podgornik 

Richard Poore 
Virginia Porter 
Jamie Potter 
Sally Potter 
Jane Pound 
Cameron Price 

James Price 
Pir Price 
Rohan Price 
Dean Pullar 
Andrew Radojkovic 
Jacqueline Ralph 
Matthew Ralph 
Leon Raudys 
Susan Rawling 
Adrian Redlich 
Christina Redlich 
Erin Redlich 
Robert Redlich 
Krysha Renison 
Seri Renkin 
Timothy Reynolds 
Joanna Rhodes 

Rachel Richardson 
Brendan Riseley 
Ben Rogers 
Geoff Rose 
Fraser Ross 
Lisa Rotar 
Sharon Russell 
Christine Rydberg 
Piniata Samson Piniata 
Pippa Sandow 
Nick Sayer 
Kim Scher 
Rebecca Schultz 
Felicity Scoffern 
Sarah Scorpo 
Martin Scott 
Claire Seale 
Kate Sedgley 
Catherine Seymour 
Claire Shakeshaft-Goode 

Tanya Shannon 
Penelope Shears 
Richard Shears 
Joanne Shoppee 
Kasha Singh 
Amber Skehan 
Luke Skehan 
Helene Skundberg 
Bronwen Slater 
Matthew Smith 
Jeremy Snow 
Jesse Spatt 
Anna Spitzley 
Carolynne Spooner 
Cameron Staggard 
Diane Staggard 
Bella Stagoll 
Eve Stagoll 
Anna Steele 
Kate Stern 
Amanda Stevens 
Grant Stewart 
Christian Strauss 
Gowan Stubbings 
Gregory Sutherland 
Isabelle Tabain 
Nik Tabain 
Victoria Tabain 
Benjamin Talbot 
Daryl Talbot 
Meileen Tan 
Alison Taylor 
Judith Taylor 
Nicoletta Theodore 
Louise Tierney 
Matt Tilley 
Tracey Tobias 
Emily Tomlinson 
Anne Treadwell 
Annelies Turnbull 
Catherine Usatoff 
Daniel van den Boom 
Simon Walliss 
Theresa Walliss 

Deita Walters 
Louise Ward 
Marcus Ward 
Ian Ward-Ambler 
Penelope Ward-Ambler 
Fiona Warner 

Donna Waters 
Moana Weir 
Michael Westaway 
Peter Wetenhall 
Megan Wheatley 
Justin Wheelahan 
Robert Whitbourn 
Brett Whiteoak 
Christine Whiteoak 
Jane Whiter 
Richard Whiter 
Brett Williams 
Cathryn Williams 
Janet Williams 
Ruth Williams 
Sandra Williams 
Chris Wilson 

Catherine Windle 
Rachael Wise 
James Wisken 
Natalie Wisken 
Bryce Wolfe 
Leanne Wolfe 
Alison Wood 
Elisa Woods 
Lou Woods 
Corinne Woodward 
Annalise Woolley 
Jon Woolley 
David Young 
Robert Zabojec 
Kristine Ziwica 
Junior Activity Member 
(5-13yrs) 
Max Alekna 
Zoe Alekna 
Charlie Allan 

Aden Allegos 
Andreas Allegos 
Lara Anderson 
Harriet Andrews 
Chloe Angelo 
Georgia Angelo 
Charlie Appleton 
Elizabeth Arnott 
Georgia Arnott 
Anshan Arnott-Tan 
Antuan Arnott-Tan 
Charlotte Ashby 
Jessica Ashby 
Cameron Austin 
Emmy Baillieu 
Ned Baillieu 
Ben Ball 
Jack Ball 
Isabel Bayliss 
Frederick Bede 
Anouk Bennett 
Hugo Bennett 
Arabella Bertalli 
Joseph Bertalli 
Scarlett Bertalli 
Emilie Bessell 
Daisy Black 
Ella Blake 
Arthur Blythe 
Oscar Blythe 
Nicholas Bogdan 
Olivia Bogdan 
Angus Boyd-Bell 
Hugo Brancatisano 
Rupert Brancatisano 
Sibella Brancatisano 
Mia Brewer 
Samuel Brewer 
Flora Brewer Blake 
Isadora Briskin 
Leo Briskin 
Jack Brockhurst 
Abby Burton 
Logan Burton 

Lily Cahill 
Andrew Callaghan 
Louis Callaghan 
Matthew Callaghan 
Nicholas Callaghan 
Charlie Callenbach 

Isabelle Carne 
Mia Carne 
Hannah Cester 
Angus Charleson 
Oscar Charleson 
Finnley Charpentier 
Saskia Chatfield 
Mackenzie Clark 
Milla Clark 
Murphy Clark 
Orlando Clark 
Robert Clark 
Anouk Clarke 
Cecilia Clements 
Lainey Cleven 
Noah Cliff 
Tia Cliff 

George Clifford 
Kitty Cochran Perfect 
Donovan Cockerell 
Lucia Cockerell 
Archer Coles 
Lola Coles 
Heidi Collingwood 
Joe Collingwood 
Alfred Collins 
Fenella Collins 
Finn Collins 
Ned Cooper 
Amelie Cordiner 
Ivy Cordiner 
Jemima Crowe 
Felicity Cunningham 
Thomas Cunningham 
Aine Curtis 
Sienna Davey 
Tom Davey 

Josh Davies 
Grace Davis 
Harriet Davis 
Tasman Davis 
Hugh Davison 
Ted Davison 
Hugh Dawes 
Lilly Dawes 
Sienna Dawes 
Charlie De Fazio 
Jack De Fazio 
Alexandria Delaney 
Leah Devine 
Max Doak 
Sam Doak 
Pierre-Eloi Donnelly 
William Doughton 
Lily Douglas 
Ruby Douglas 
Helena Drake 
Nicholas Dunlop 
Honor Edmonds 
Angus Ellery 
Ava Elliott 
Charlie Enders 
Miles Enders 
Bonnie Enever 
Sam Erez 
Oliver Falcon 
Elizabeth Feehan 
Isaac Feehan 
Campbell Findlay 
Maxwell Findlay 
Thomas Findlay 
Gracie Fletcher 
Willow Fletcher 
Claudia Flouch 
Jean-Paul Flouch 
Willow Foenander 
Mietta Foley 
Evelyn Ford 
Fraser Ford 
Ava Fortuyn 
Miriam Fulton 

Archie Gallagher 
Mia Gallagher 
Matilda Gaylard 
Miles Gaylard 
Macey Gibbs 
Louis Glanville 

Stella Golding 
Riley Goode 
Evelyn Goodsir 
Herbert Goodsir 
Isabelle Gove 
Claudia Grant 
Mathilda Grant 
Oscar Griffith 
Annabel Guthrie 
Sam Guthrie 
Lachlan Hall-Johnston 
Amber Hamersfeld 
Ben Hamersfeld 
Zac Hamersfeld 
Fox Handley 
Fred Handley 
Toby Hansen 
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Judah Heffernan 
Lachlan Heffernan 
Lucas Heffernan 
Mietta Hellmann 
Eliza Hershan 
Lachlan Hershan 
Jardin Hick 
Latika Hick 
Natalia Hick 
Charles Hicks 
Yasmin Hicks 
Liam Higgins 
Matilde Higgins 
Bridie Hipwell 
Eva Hodgkins 
Leo Hoskin 
Mitchell Hoskin 
Ella Hosking 
William Hosking 
Oscar Hoskins 

Benjamin Hulyer 
Emma Humphery-Smith 
Isobel Humphery-Smith 
James Humphery-Smith 
Lucy Hunt 
Matilda Hunt 
Thomas Hunt 
Gracie Hunter 
Jack Hurley 
Alfie Hyatt 
Ruby Hyatt 
India Hynes 
Lottie Hynes 
Rose Jenkins 
Ariya Johnston 
Oliver Johnston 
Owen Johnston 
Angus Johnstone 
Mimi Johnstone 
Ruby Johnstone 
Taya Johnstone 
Lily Jolly 
Scarlett Jolly 
Kornelius Jones 
Esme Kanaan 
Isla Kanaan 
Anoushka Kemp Smith 
India King 
Noah King 
Daisy Kitchener 
Isla Kitchener 
TIM KLEIN 

Molly Kleverlaan 
Amelia Kogler 
Claudia Kogler 
Harriet Kogler 
Elina Kyriacou 
Mikayla Kyriacou 
Noah Kyriacou 
Olivia Laity 
Oscar Laity 
Hamish Lally 
Sam Lally 
Charlie Langdon 
Freddie Langdon 
Tom Langley 
Louisa Larobina 
Nicholas Larobina 
Olivia Larobina 
Abbey Laughton 
Cleo Laughton 
Henry Laussen 

Eliott Lebeau 
Estelle Lebeau 
Gaston Lebeau 
Charlotte Leeton Watts 
George Leeton Watts 
Adelaide Lempriere 
Henri Lempriere 
Chloe Levy 
Nicholas Lew 
Sophie Lew 
Charlotte Lillywhite 
Grace Lillywhite 
Tom Lillywhite 
Josh Lindeman 
Sienna Lindeman 
Corey Lionnet 
Hannah Lionnet 
Austin Locke 
Ava Locke 
Fergus Locke 
Evie Long 
Sebastian Long 
Cooper Lowden 
Charlotte Macaulay 
William Macaulay 
Isla Macdonald 
Edith MacGowan 
Max MacGowan 
Harry Mackinnon 
Lola Mackinnon 
Angus MacLaren 

Charles Macpherson 
Smith 
Rose Maher 
India Mair 
Riley Mair 
Millicent Marks 
Thomas Marks 
Matthew Martyn 
Madeleine Maskell 
Poppy Maskell 
Emma May-Konning 
Elkie McCutcheon 
George McGirr 
Bonnie McGuire 
Liam McGuirk 
Mitchell McGuirk 
Euan McKenzie 
Edward McKinnon 
Rory McKinnon 
Sophia McKinnon 

Skye McLeish 
Sophie McManamey 
Aidan McMillan 
Keeley McMillan 
Sophie Melbourne 
Alex Melone 
Eliza Meredith-Smith 
Sarah Meredith-Smith 
Cassandra Merrigan 
Violet Merrigan 
Phoebe Merrison 
William Merrison 
Hamish Metcalf 
Riley Metcalf 
Matty Meysztowicz 
Ted Meysztowicz 
Betsy Mitchell 
Poppy Mollett 
Lucinda Morrissy 
Amelia Morton 
Estelle Morton 
James Morton 
Allegra Murray 
Vivienne Mae Ness 
Mylie Neville-Smith 
Peggy Neville-Smith 
Richie Neville-Smith 
Emily Newnham 
Jessica Newnham 
Charlotte Nikakis 
Chloe Nikakis 
Phoebe Nikakis 

Alexander Northcote 
Giselle Northcote 
Jasmine Northcote 
Poppy Noxon 
Alannah O'Connor 
Fergus O'Connor 
Isabel O'Connor 
Lachlan O'Connor 
Liam O'Connor 
Milla Ogilvie 
Anais O'Hara 
Grace Oldham 
Trinity Ovenden 
Emai Owen 
Romy Page 
Cassidy Pascoe 
Ryder Pascoe 
Camilla Perry 
Jemima Perry 
Zara Perry 

Sophia Perton 
Theodore Perton 
Hudson Phillips 
Alexandra PITT 
Rocco Podgornik 
Chloe Poore 
Tia Poore 
Charlotte Pound 
Nina Pound 
Billy Price 
Charlie Price 
Eve Price 
Finn Price 
Pippa Price 
Samuel Price 
Aurelia Puleio 
Lucia Puleio 
Charlie Pullar 
Mimi Pullar 
Oliver Pullar 
Ella Ralph 
Archibald Ralton 
Ike Ralton 
Joshua Raudys 
Noah Raudys 
Alice Rawling 
Gustav Rechner Thomas 
Alexander Redlich 
Edward Redlich 
Jamie Redlich 
Ben Reynolds 
Kate Reynolds 

Luke Reynolds 
Isabella Richardson 
Jessica Richardson 
Eli Rogers 
Jasper Romari 
Layla Romari 
Alice Rose 
Thomas Rose 
Ivy Rotar 
Stephanie Salaoutis 
Zoe Salaoutis 
Emilia Samson Piniata 
Liana Samson Piniata 
Fredric Sandow 
Jessica Sandow 
Charlie Sayer 
Will Sayer 
Joah Scher 
Gus Schultz 
Ruby Schultz 

Misty Scoffern 
Skye Scoffern 
Tulle Scoffern 
Imogen Scott 
Percy Scott 
Coco Sedgley 
Lola Sedgley 
Emmylou Shannon 
Anna Shears 
Jaya Singh Towler 
Oscar Skehan 
Claudia Snow 
Laila Spatt 
Matilda Spatt 
Evie Staggard 
Samuel Steele 
Eliza Stewart 
Cleo Strauss 
Indianna Stubbings 
Casper Tabain 
Jessica Tabain 
Peter Tabain 
Chloe Talbot 
James Talbot 
Isaac Taylor 
Jesse Theodore 
Isabelle Thom 
Jack Thom 
Oscar Tilley 
Kate Tobias-Hoyle 
Arabella Tomlinson 
Freddie Tomlinson 

Jake Turnbull 
Lucia Turnbull 
Luke Usatoff 
Lucy van den Boom 
Mia van den Boom 
Jordi van der Schoot 
Charles Walliss 
Oscar Walliss 
Wilkie Walters 
Archie Ward 
Emma Ward 
Freddie Ward 
Zoe Warner 
Poppy Waters 
Wilbur Waters 
Ruby Watson 
Zara Watson 
Archie Westaway 
Charlotte Westaway 
Clancy Westaway 

Charlie Wetenhall 
Ilka Wheatley-Young 
Declan Wheelahan 
Patrick Wheelahan 
Jack Whitbourn 
Aaron Whitehouse 
Liam Whitehouse 
Nicholas Whiteoak 
Chloe Whiter 
Sophie Wilkinson 
Ardi Williams 
Christian Williams 
Cooper Williams 
Emma Williams 
Parker Williams 
Saige Williams 
Arley Wilson 
Hazel Wilson 
Xavier Wilson 
Kalani Wisken 
Isabella Wolfe 
Montgomery Wolfe 
Oscar Wolfe 
Sonny Woods 
Jock Woolley 
Alexander Zabojec 

Membership Statistics 

Category All Male Female 
Junior Activity Member (5-13 years) 459 218 241 
Cadet Member (13-15 years) 91 42 49 
Active (15-18 yrs) 82 45 37 
Active (18yrs and over) 137 87 50 
Reserve Active 5 5 0 
Long Service 11 7 4 
Associate 423 183 240 
Life Member 30 27 3 
General 2 2 0 
Total 1240 616 624 



Sponsors

The Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club appreciates the support of the following sponsors, supporters 
and donors. We truly value your support and hope to give in return as much exposure to your 
business as we can. The Committee encourages Point Leo members to support the following 
businesses: 

Sponsors 

Balnarring and District Community Bank Branch of Bendigo Bank 

Flinders Hotel 

Paton Estate Agents Pty. Ltd. 

Point Leo General Store 

Vantage Fuels 

Supporters and Donors

Alexandra Devine 
Andrew and Sandra Barnes 
Andrew Gibson 
Anna Taylor 
Bass Surfboards 
Bayside Osteopathy 
Ben Wilson 
Blue Moon Hardware 
Burnley Brewing 
Chuck  Warner 
Clara Officer 
Damon Scoffern 
Eagle Chairlift 
East Coast School 
Enchanted Garden 
Endota Spa Red Hill 

Flinders Village Café 
Foxy's 
Franny Cook 
Geoff Macaulay 
Gourmet Paddock 
Haydn Tierney 
Heather Winneke 
HotHut Yoga and Winery 
Karen Panton 
Kate Stern 
Louise Tierney 
Marco and Amanda Larobina 
Merricks General Store 
Mornington Prime Cuts 
Myrtaceae 

Patrick Cox and Patrick 
Scheiber 
Peninsula Hot Springs 
Phillippa's Bakery 
Point Leo Estate 
Red Hill Brewery 
Red Hill Cellars 
Red Hill Shuttle 
Sinclair Dermatology 
Swaney Family 
Tamara Brawn 
Tom Mollenkopf 
Wendy's Treasures 
Wes Frost Marine 
Zeega 

Supporters and Donors 

(Gary Tierney Foundation)

Alan Warby 
John Scambler 
Richard Batchelor 

John Forsyth 
Louise Tierney 

David Gibb 
Damon Scoffern 
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Annual Report 2017-2018 

63 Years of Service to the Community 

"A glimpse of the future - the next generation of Nippers". 

The children of some of our very successful female competitors and dedicated lifesavers from the 
late 1990s and early 2000s - Lucy Mollenkopf, Natalie Johnstone, Rose Anderson, Khali Gooding 

(née Williams), Simone Munro (née Williams) and Simone Bell (née Garner). 
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